
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

April Board Meeting 
To be held at the offices of 

Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation 
2200 East Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd. 

Austin, TX 78702 

 
 

Thursday, April 19, 2018 
10:30 a.m. 



Agenda  



  

BOARD MEETING 
TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION 

To be held at the offices of  
Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation 

2200 East Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd 
Austin, Texas 78702 

April 19, 2018 at 10:30am 
  
 
 
 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL                             Bob Jones 
CERTIFICATION OF QUORUM             Chair 
 
The Board of Directors of Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation will meet to consider and possibly act on the following: 
     
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT’S REPORT                   Janie Taylor  
 

Tab A: Homeownership Finance Report 
Tab B: Development Finance Report 
Tab C: Quarterly Fundraising Report 
Tab D: Monthly Financial Reports 

 
ACTION ITEMS IN OPEN MEETING: 
 
Tab 1 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of Minutes of the Board Meeting held on February 15, 2018.  
 
Tab 2 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of a Resolution regarding the Submission of one or more 

Applications for Allocation of Private Activity Bonds, Notices of Intention to Issue Bonds and State Bond 
Applications to the Texas Bond Review Board and Declaration of Expectation to Reimburse Expenditures with 
Proceeds of Future Debt for the Walnut Creek Apartments. 

 
Tab 3 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of Loan Agreement relating to a $1,000,000 Revolving Loan to 

be made by the Corporation to CDC of Brownsville to be used by CDC of Brownsville to make Single Family 
Loans pursuant to its MiCasita  Loan Program.  

 
Tab 4  Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of the 2018 Texas Foundations Fund Guidelines.  
 
Tab 5 Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Approval of Texas Community Capital (TCC)’s Proposed Changes to 

Bylaws Related to Increase of the Number of TSAHC-Appointed Board Members and Related Changes to 
Board Composition. 

 
Tab 6 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of the Appointment of Member(s) to the Board Members of 

Texas Community Capital, LLC.  
   
Tab 7 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of the Corporation’s Program Guidelines for the Housing and 

Economic Assistance to Rebuild Texas (HEART) Program, a Special Disaster Recovery Grant Program to be 
administered in Partnership with Enterprise Community Partners.  

 
Tab 8 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of a Resolution to Restate, Ratify, and Affirm the Officers of the 

Corporation, and to Designate and Restate the Signature and Approval Authority of Officers of the 
Corporation.  

 
Tab 9  Closed Executive Session – Discuss real estate matters related to the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real 

property located at 112 Stanford Drive, Leander Texas (Real Estate Matters – Section 551.072 Texas 
Government Code). 

 
Tab 10  Closed Executive Session – Discuss legal issues related to mortgage transaction matters with Mortgage Financial 

Services Company. (Private Consultation with Legal Counsel – Section 551.071 Texas Government Code).  
  
 



  

 
CLOSED MEETING: 
 
Consultation with legal counsel on legal matters – Texas Government Code § 551.071 
Deliberation regarding purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property – Texas Government Code § 551.072 
Deliberation regarding prospective gift or donation to the state or Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation – Texas Government Code 
§ 551.073 
Personnel Matters – Texas Government Code § 551.074 
Implementation of security personnel or devices – Texas Government Code § 551.076 
Other matters authorized under the Texas Government Code 
 
ACTION ITEMS IN OPEN MEETING: 
 
Action in Open Meeting on Items Discussed in Closed Executive Session 
 
ADJOURN:  
  
Individuals who require auxiliary aids or services for this meeting should contact Laura Ross, ADA Responsible Employee, at 512-477-
3560 or Relay Texas at 1-800-735-2989 at least two days before the meeting so that the appropriate arrangements can be made. 
 
Section 46.035 of the Texas Penal Code prohibits handgun licensees from carrying their handguns at government meetings such as this 
one.  This prohibition applies to both concealed carry and open carry by handgun licensees.  Handgun licensees are required by law to 
refrain from carrying their handguns at this meeting. 
 
Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation reserves the right to recess this meeting (without adjourning) and convene at a later stated 
time, if and to the extent allowed by law.  If Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation adjourns this meeting and reconvenes at a later 
time, the later meeting will be held in the same location as this meeting.  Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation also reserves the 
right to proceed into a closed meeting during the meeting in accordance with the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas 
Government Code. If permitted by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code, any item on this Agenda to be 
discussed in open meeting may also be discussed by the Board (and any other authorized persons) in closed meeting. 
 



Executive Vice President’s Report  



Tab A  



 Homeownership Programs with Down Payment Assistance

January 1, 2018 to March 31, 2018

Month Closed # of Loans % Total At a Glance 

January‐18 80,392,736$           485 32.3% Average Annual Income $57,171

February‐18 83,685,507$           498 33.6% Average Purchase Price $171,171

March‐18 84,714,816$           505 34.1% Average Loan Amount $167,200

Totals $248,793,059 1488 100% Average Household Size 2

Lender Closed # of Loans % Total Average Interest Rate 5.474%

Fairway Independent Mortgage Corporation $19,761,685 127 7.9% Program %

Everett Financial, dba Supreme Lending $17,801,839 110 7.2% Home Sweet Texas  81.52%

Guild Mortgage Corporation $16,273,809 105 6.5% Homes for Texas Heroes 18.48%

PrimeLending $14,633,528 97 5.9% Allied Health Faculty 0.00%

Cornerstone Home Lending, Inc. $11,991,181 70 4.8% Corrections Officer 1.28%

Mortgage Financial Services, LLC $10,300,533 57 4.1% County Jailer 0.27%

Academy Mortgage Corporation $9,259,876 51 3.7% EMS Personnel 0.20%

Nations Reliable Lending, LLC $9,233,616 53 3.7% Fire Fighter 1.34%

AmCap Mortgage Limited $8,671,494 57 3.5% Peace Officer 2.15%

DHI Mortgage Company, Ltd. $8,068,582 39 3.2% Professional Nurse Faculty 0.67%

Georgetown Mortgage, LLC $8,024,636 43 3.2% Public Security Officer 0.13%

NTFN, Inc. $7,415,189 43 3.0% School Counselor 0.27%

loanDepot.com LLC $6,454,445 33 2.6% School Librarian 0.00%

First Choice Loan Services, Inc. $5,366,834 29 2.2% School Nurse 0.00%

Highlands Residential Mortgage $5,302,684 30 2.1% Teacher 10.42%

Hometrust Mortgage Company $4,177,825 28 1.7% Teacher Aide 0.07%

Mid America Mortgage, Inc. $3,768,411 22 1.5% Veteran 1.68%

HomeBridge Financial Services $3,742,165 23 1.5% New/Existing Home

Gardner Financial Services, Ltd. $3,474,390 20 1.4% Existing 84.34%

Ark‐La‐Tex Financial (Benchmark Mtg.) $3,248,801 18 1.3% New 15.66%

Movement Mortgage, LLC $3,004,355 21 1.2% Type of Loan

SWBC Mortgage Corporation $2,910,558 19 1.2% Conventional ‐ Purchase 28.97%

CMG Mortgage, Inc. dba CMG Financial $2,508,931 13 1.0% FHA ‐ Purchase 68.41%

FBC Mortgage LLC $2,411,991 14 1.0% USDA‐RHS Purchase 0.40%

Cardinal Financial Company $2,372,269 14 1.0% VA ‐ Purchase 2.22%

Security National Mortgage Company $2,368,192 13 1.0% Ethnicity

Envoy Mortgage $2,294,345 14 0.9% American Indian/Alaskan Native 0.34%

Certainty Home Loans, LLC $2,192,116 14 0.9% Asian/Pacific Islander 1.55%

Right Start Mortgage, Inc. $2,028,846 14 0.8% Black 14.65%

Pulte Mortgage LLC $1,986,812 9 0.8% Hispanic 34.34%

New American Funding (Broker Solutions) $1,817,355 13 0.7% Not Defined 5.11%

SFMC, LP (Service First Mortgage) $1,762,826 11 0.7% Other 0.40%

American Financial Network, Inc. $1,739,193 10 0.7% White 43.62%

Eagle Home Mortgage, LLC $1,674,498 8 0.7% Top 20 Originating Counties* # Households

Network Funding, LP $1,613,204 10 0.6% Harris 250

Primary Residential Mortgage, Inc. $1,611,011 9 0.6% Dallas 169

Guaranteed Rate $1,593,959 10 0.6% Tarrant 169

Interlinc Mortgage Services, LLC $1,562,270 9 0.6% Bexar 125

Wallick and Volk, Inc. $1,526,196 11 0.6% Denton 51

International City Mortgage, Inc. $1,511,416 8 0.6% Travis 45

Cendera Funding, Inc. $1,508,341 8 0.6% Collin 43

Independent Bank $1,493,908 9 0.6% HIdalgo 42

Sente Mortgage Inc. $1,481,504 8 0.6% Williamson 36

First Community Mortgage $1,427,188 13 0.6% Fort Bend 32

Crosscountry Mortgage, Inc. $1,246,486 7 0.5% El Paso 32

Stearns Lending, LLC $1,239,351 5 0.5% Kaufman 27

Amerifirst Financial, Inc. $1,175,193 8 0.5% Montgomery 26

Mortgage Solutions of Colorado, LLC $1,082,305 6 0.4% Galveston 25

American Mortgage & Equity Consultants $1,037,626 6 0.4% Ellis 22

Pilgrim Mortgage, LLC $1,033,324 6 0.4% Nueces 22

Summit Funding, Inc. $1,021,187 5 0.4% Bell 21

Synergy One Lending, Inc. $1,016,945 7 0.4% Brazoria 20

Churchill Mortgage Corporation $965,310 4 0.4% Cameron 19

Citywide Home Loans, a Utah Corporation $880,711 5 0.4% Webb 18

LoanStar Home Loans $856,320 4 0.3%

Gold Star Mortgage Financial Group $794,880 5 0.3%

Gateway Mortgage Group, LLC $719,440 4 0.3%

CLM Mortgage, LLC $704,895 3 0.3%

Pacific Union Financial, LLC $666,409 3 0.3%

*Top 20 of all counties statewide. All remaining 

counties served 79 households combined.



 Homeownership Programs with Down Payment Assistance

January 1, 2018 to March 31, 2018

The Home Lending Group, LLC $645,983 3 0.3%

Victorian Finance LLC $584,686 4 0.2%

Open Mortgage LLC $568,623 4 0.2%

Guaranteed Rate Affinity, LLC $562,127 4 0.2%

On Q Financial, Inc. $533,358 3 0.2%

Patriot Mortgage Company $518,197 3 0.2%

Willow Bend Mortgage Company, LLC $486,648 3 0.2%

Happy State Bank $480,973 4 0.2%

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. $480,400 3 0.2%

Castle and Cooke Mortgage $467,377 3 0.2%

Michigan Mutual, Inc. $454,930 2 0.2%

LHM Financial Corp., dba CNN Mortgage $448,768 3 0.2%

Loan Simple, Inc. $423,373 3 0.2%

University Lending Group, LLC $411,488 4 0.2%

Affiliated Bank $405,919 3 0.2%

Legacy Mortgage, LLC $371,156 4 0.1%

Republic State Mortgage Co. $367,117 2 0.1%

America's Choice Home Loans, LP $311,258 2 0.1%

Texas Bank Mortgage Company $291,675 3 0.1%

Bank of England $265,050 1 0.1%

Origin Bank $226,324 1 0.1%

LegacyTexas Bank $224,867 1 0.1%

First Service CU dba eCU Mortgage $182,631 1 0.1%

Nations Lending Corporation $166,920 1 0.1%

Peoples Home Equity, Inc. $156,021 1 0.1%

1st Preference Mortgage Corporation $153,939 1 0.1%

BancorpSouth Bank $153,174 1 0.1%

Resmac, Inc. $147,283 1 0.1%

Aim Bank $140,409 1 0.1%

Rocky Mountain Mortgage Company $129,200 1 0.1%

Southwest Bank $122,996 1 0.0%

Inter National Bank $97,000 1 0.0%

Grand Total $248,793,059 1488 100%



 Mortgage Credit Certificate Program

January 1, 2018 to March 31, 2018

Month Closed # of Loans % Total At a Glance 

January‐18 $12,525,059 74 36% Total Amount Originated $34,668,418

February‐18 $12,645,107 76 36% Average Annual Income $52,086

March‐18 $9,498,252 58 27% Average Purchase Price $171,483

Totals $34,668,418 208 100% Average Loan Amount $166,675

Average Household Size 2

Lender Closed # of Loans % Total Average Interest Rate 5.322%

Everett Financial, dba Supreme Lending $3,538,610 20 9.6% Program %

PrimeLending $2,655,034 14 6.7% Home Sweet Texas 80.29%

First Choice Loan Services, Inc. $2,175,491 12 5.8% Homes for Texas Heroes 19.71%

Nations Reliable Lending, LLC $2,165,733 14 6.7% Allied Health Faculty 0.00%

Guild Mortgage Corporation $2,150,639 13 6.3% Corrections Officer 3.85%

Fairway Independent Mortgage Corporation $1,606,140 10 4.8% County Jailer 0.00%

AmCap Mortgage Limited $1,446,467 9 4.3% EMS Personnel 0.00%

Hometrust Mortgage Company $1,217,741 9 4.3% Fire Fighter 0.00%

DHI Mortgage Company, Ltd. $1,206,411 6 2.9% Peace Officer 1.44%

Cornerstone Home Lending, Inc. $1,144,896 7 3.4% Professional Nurse Faculty 0.00%

Highlands Residential Mortgage $960,637 5 2.4% Public Security Officer 0.00%

loanDepot.com LLC $840,672 4 1.9% School Counselor 0.48%

Academy Mortgage Corporation $831,309 5 2.4% School Librarian 0.00%

Georgetown Mortgage, LLC $760,675 4 1.9% School Nurse 0.00%

Movement Mortgage, LLC $738,278 5 2.4% Teacher 12.50%

Victorian Finance LLC $728,041 5 2.4% Teacher Aide 0.00%

SWBC Mortgage Corporation $669,409 4 1.9% Veteran 1.44%

Envoy Mortgage $635,092 4 1.9% New/Existing Home

Colonial Savings, F.A. $591,500 3 1.4% Existing 82.69%

American Mortgage & Equity Consultants $572,448 3 1.4% New 17.31%

Cardinal Financial Company $544,473 3 1.4% Type of Loan

Mortgage Financial Services, LLC $537,340 3 1.4% Conventional ‐ Purchase 30.77%

Wallick and Volk, Inc. $536,028 4 1.9% FHA ‐ Purchase 67.31%

Pulte Mortgage LLC $475,845 2 1.0% USDA‐RHS Purchase 0.48%

Interlinc Mortgage Services, LLC $423,279 3 1.4% VA ‐ Purchase 1.44%

Pilgrim Mortgage, LLC $402,474 2 1.0% Ethnicity

International City Mortgage, Inc. $399,902 2 1.0% American Indian/Alaskan Native 0.00%

Primary Residential Mortgage, Inc. $362,130 3 1.4% Asian/Pac Isle 3.71%

Texas Bank Mortgage Company $331,015 3 1.4% Black 20.17%

Open Mortgage LLC $319,014 2 1.0% Hispanic 35.12%

Independent Bank $310,218 2 1.0% Not Defined 6.15%

New American Funding (Broker Solutions) $292,193 2 1.0% Other 1.83%

Amerifirst Financial, Inc. $270,750 1 0.5% White 33.03%

Sente Mortgage Inc. $259,403 2 1.0% Top 20 Originating Counties* # of Loans

Eagle Home Mortgage, LLC $251,678 1 0.5% Harris 55

Pacific Union Financial, LLC $218,847 1 0.5% Bexar 20

Right Start Mortgage, Inc. $218,468 2 1.0% Dallas 19

CMG Mortgage, Inc. dba CMG Financial $190,486 1 0.5% Tarrant 18

The Home Lending Group, LLC $185,478 1 0.5% Fort Bend 10

Network Funding, LP $156,750 1 0.5% Travis 9

Castle and Cooke Mortgage $155,138 1 0.5% Williamson 8

NTFN, Inc. $134,518 1 0.5% Denton 8

Happy State Bank $127,595 1 0.5% HIdalgo 6

Synergy One Lending, Inc. $127,546 1 0.5% Kaufman 5

Legacy Mortgage, LLC $126,100 1 0.5% El Paso 4

Affiliated Bank $124,699 1 0.5% Nueces 4

Bank of England $124,208 1 0.5% Galveston 4

Guaranteed Rate $119,698 1 0.5% Bell 3

Gardner Financial Services, Ltd. $119,500 1 0.5% Hunt 3

Gold Star Mortgage Financial Group $108,890 1 0.5% Montgomery 3

Certainty Home Loans, LLC $79,532 1 0.5% Collin 3

Total Committed $34,668,418 208 100% Ellis 3

Hays 3

Brazoria 3

*Top 20 of all counties statewide. All remaining 

counties served 14 households combined.



Tab B  



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation 

Development Finance Programs Report 
April 2018 

 
Affordable Communities of Texas Program (ACT) 

This month,  program  staff  visited  an ACT  property which  is  under  contract  to  a  buyer  in  Clarksville, 
Texas. In addition to that ACT property, there are ten NSP homes under contract to buyers, including the 
last home that is a rehab. All subsequent NSP homes will be new construction.  
 
There are currently 21 homes under construction, the vast majority being NSP properties.  
 
TSAHC  is  working  on  a  non‐NSP  ACT  rehab  in  Dallas  in  partnership  with  The  Housing  Channel,  a 
nonprofit serving the DFW area. The entity that facilitated the donation of that property to TSAHC, the 
National Community  Stabilization  Trust, has  approached  TSAHC  staff  about  featuring  the home on  a 
news  segment  on National  Public  Radio.  Staff  is  doing  due  diligence  to  see  if  this would  be  a  good 
opportunity for publicity.  
 
Here is a summary of this month’s portfolio numbers:  
 

Program 
Portfolio as of  
March 1, 2018 

Acquired  Sold 
Current 
Portfolio 

Current Portfolio Value 

ACT Land Bank  55  0 0 55 $690,209.00

ACT Land Trust  1  0 0 1 $650,000.00

Texas NSP  204  0 3 201 $2,813,731.82

Veteran's Initiative  1  0 0 1 $33,210.00

Totals  261  0 3 258 $4,187,150.82

 

Texas Housing Impact Fund 

In December 2017, TSAHC’s Board approved a loan to Accessible Housing Austin! (AHA!) in the amount 
of $695,000 for the AHA! at Briarcliff Apartment project. In February 2018 the Texas Department of 
Housing and Community Affairs (TDHCA) approved a $1.5 million deferred forgivable loan to AHA! for 
the same project.  AHA! hopes to close on the TDHCA and TSAHC loans in mid‐July, with construction 
completion in Q2 of 2019.  
 
Our legal counsel has requested that a resolution be presented to the Board this month for the MiCasita 
loan, previously  reviewed and awarded by TSAHC  in December of 2016. Although no  changes  to  the 
terms and conditions of the  loan have been made, the  loan documents have been updated so counsel 
believes there is a need to reaffirm the Board’s previous award at this time.  
 
Program staff will be presenting a training session at the Rural Rental Housing Academy in San Antonio 
on April 12th. The presentation will focus on the Texas Housing Impact Fund and Texas Foundations Fund 
programs and their use for rural housing projects.  
 
Multifamily Bond Program 

Multifamily bond developers are beginning  to work on potential deals  for 2018. The deadline  for 9% 
housing tax credit applications was March 2nd so bonds are now the focus for many projects that didn’t 
make  the  cut.  The  developer  of  the  Beckley  Townhomes  project, Dominium, which was  induced  by 



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation 

Development Finance Programs Report 
April 2018 

 
TSAHC in December 2017 has begun moving forward with an application the Texas Bond Review Board 
for a reservation of bond volume cap.  Three other potential projects have been discussed with staff and 
one application was  received on March 9th,  for  the Walnut Creek Apartments, a  rehabilitation project 
located in Austin.  Staff will be presenting that project for approval of the inducement resolution at this 
meeting.   



Tab C 



1

Funder Amount Status Notes

Federal Reserve Bank of Dallas $5,000 Awarded In Kind Donation of Food and Meeting Space 

Bank of America $3,200 Received Received award in November 2017.

BBVA Compass $5,000 Received Received award in July 2017.

Frost Bank $4,000,000 Received
A community development loan to be used to fund down payment assistance for home buyer 
programs. 

Texas Financial Education Endowment $40,000 Declined Submitted request in September 2017 and notified in October 2017.

JPMorgan Chase Foundation $10,000 Received Received award in March 2018.

Insperity $5,000 Received Received award in March 2018

Wells Fargo Housing Foundation $15,000 Declined
Submitted request January 2018 and notified in April 2018, but invited to apply in next funding 
cycle in June 2018

Wells Fargo Priority Markets $200,000 Pending
Submitted initial proposal in March 2018 to administer additional down payment assistance 
through home buyer programs in Austin and San Antonio.

Frost Bank $5,000 Received Received award in March 2018

BBVA Compass $10,000 Pending Submitted in April 2018.
Housing Connection Sponsorships $8,650 Received Online campaign donations received in December 2017 and April 2018

Total Received/Awarded $4,041,850

Total Requests Pending $210,000

Funder Amount Status Notes

Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation
2018 Quarterly Fundraising Report

Home Buyer Programs/Financial & Housing Education 

Texas Foundations Fund/Housing and Economic Assistance to Rebuild Texas (HEART) Program

April 10, 2018



2

Rebuild Texas Fund $500,000 Awarded

Request submitted in December 2017 and approved in March 2018. Funding will support the 
Housing and Economic Assistance to Rebuild Texas (HEART) Program, a joint grants program 
between TSAHC and Enterprise Community Partners.  Total amount approved is $1.1 million, with 
$500,000 to be administered  by TSAHC and $600,000 to be administered by Enterprise. Half of 
TSAHC's award will be provided up front, and the other half is provided as a matching grant 
contingent upon raising additional funding

Meadows Foundation $100,000 Pending Prelimary request submitted in April 2018 to support HEART Program

Total Requests Awarded $500,000
Total Requests Pending $100,000

Funder Amount Status Notes

Texas Capital Bank $750,000 Received
Structured as a five year community development loan to be used for the Texas Housing Impact 
Fund.  Have initiated discussion to increase investment amount in 2018.

Texas Capital Bank $7,500 Received
Grant to support Texas Housing Impact Fund. 3-year grant totaling $22,500, with $7,500 received in 
2017, $7,500 in 2018, and another $7,500 to be received in 2019.

Austin Community Foundation $250,000 Pending
Requesting a five year PRI to support the Texas Housing Impact Fund to fund affordable single 
family and multifamily housing in East Austin and Del Valle areas. 

Meadows Foundation $250,000 Withdrawn
Foundation staff indicated that HEART is a better fit for current priorities, so have withdrawn this 
application and submitted an application to support the HEART program instead.

Brenham National Bank TBD Discussion Initial discussion in March 2018 to provide additional funding for a development in Bryan, Texas.

BBVA Compass Bank $1,000,000 Discussion
Have had initial conversation about potential EQ2 investment. Have provided requested 
documentation

Total Received $757,500
Total Requests Under Discussion $1,000,000

Total Requests Pending $500,000

Funder Amount Status Notes

Lowes $2,000 Declined
Submitted request in March 2018 for a gift card to purchase appliances for an ACT property in 
Wichita Falls.

Texas Housing Impact Fund

Affordable Communities of Texas (ACT) Program



3

Total Received/Awarded $5,299,350

Total Pending $810,000
Total Under Discussion $1,000,000

Summary



Tab D  



TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (unaudited)

As of February 28, 2018

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 10,959,239    
Restricted Assets Held by Bond Trustee:

Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,388,981      
Accrued Interest 59,776           

Custodial Cash and Cash Equivalents 113,082         
Investments, at Fair Market Value 1,594,420      
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Revenue 56,829           
Accrued Interest Receivable 123,054         
Loans Receivable,  Current Portion 66,551           
Notes Receivable, Current Portion 195,946         
Down Payment Assistance 2,025,795      
Prepaid Expenses 61,341           

Total Current Assets: 16,645,014    

Noncurrent Assets
Loans Receivable, Net of uncollectible amounts of $26,923 513,936         
Notes Receivable 5,849,842      
Investments, at Fair Market Value 6,775,748      
Mortgage Servicing Rights, Net of Accumulated Amortization of $2,477,084 250,977         
Fixed Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation of $753,454 1,283,681      
Owned Real Estate, Federal & Other Programs Net of Amort $450,667 9,704,486      
Restricted Investments Held by Bond Trustee, at Fair Market Value 35,559,691    

Total Noncurrent Assets: 59,938,361    

TOTAL ASSETS $ 76,583,375    

(continued)



TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - Continued (unaudited)

As of February 28, 2018

LIABILITIES 

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses $ 401,857         
Notes Payable, Current Portion 2,100,306      
Custodial Reserve Funds 113,082         
Other Current Liabilities 45,924           
Payable from Restricted Assets Held by Bond Trustee:

Bonds Payable, Current Portion 740,000         
Accrued Interest on Bonds 557,537         

Total Current Liabilities: 3,958,706      

Noncurrent Liabilities
Notes Payable 2,463,183      
Revenue Bonds Payable 33,282,581    
Due to Federal Programs 2,230,464      
Unearned Revenue 271,408         

Total Noncurrent Liabilities: 38,247,636    

Total Liabilities: 42,206,342    

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Revenue 196,246         

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 196,246         

NET POSITION
Invested in Capital Assets 1,283,681      
Restricted for:

Debt Service 2,428,330      
Other Purposes 22,993           

Unrestricted 30,445,783    

Total Net Position: $ 34,180,787    



TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (unaudited)

for the 6 months ending February 28, 2018

Operating Revenues

     Interest and Investment Income $ 1,115,391      

     Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments 275,494         

     Single Family Income 5,013,222      

     Asset Oversight and Compliance Fees 113,406         

     Loan Servicing Fees 44,420           

     Multifamily Income 146,794         

     Land Bank Income 209,473         

     Public Support

          Federal & State Grants 6,730             

          Contributions 18,101           

     Other Operating Revenue 456,563         
          Total Operating Revenues $ 7,399,594      

Operating Expenses

     Interest Expense on Bonds and Notes Payable $ 681,399         

     Salaries, Wages and Payroll Related Costs 1,250,218      

     Professional Fees and Services 237,778         

     Amortization 117,314         

     Office and Equipment Rental and Maintenance 46,455           

     Travel and Meals 42,631           

     Depreciation 126,418         

     Program and Loan Administration 629,076         

     Grant Expenditures 6,765             

     Foundation Fund Grants 212,000         

     Other Operating Expenses 223,777         
          Total Operating Expenses $ 3,573,831      

Net Income 3,825,763      

Total Net Position, Beginning 30,355,024    

Total Net Position, Ending $ 34,180,787    



































































































































Tab 1  



BOARD MEETING 
TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION 

Held at the offices of 
Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation 

2200 E. Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd. 
Austin, TX 78702 

February 15, 2018 at 10:30 a.m. 
 

Summary of Minutes 
 
Call to Order, Roll Call   
Certification of Quorum 
 
The Board Meeting of the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation (the 
“Corporation”) was called to order by Bob Jones, Chair, at 10:45 a.m., on February 15, 
2018, at the offices of Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation, 2200 E. Martin Luther 
King Jr. Blvd, Austin, TX 78702.  Roll Call certified that a quorum was present. 
 
Members Present 
 
Bob Jones, Chair  
Bill Dietz, Vice Chair 
Gerry Evenwel, Member 
Jerry Romero, Member 
 
Staff Present 
 
Betsy Aldrich, Senior Accounting Manager 
Celina Stubbs, Manager, Asset Oversight and Compliance 
David Long, President 
James Matias, Senior Manager of Asset Oversight & Compliance 
Janie Taylor, Executive Vice President 
Katie Claflin, Director, Communications & Development  
Lacy Brown, Executive Assistant 
Laura Ross, Corporate Secretary/Manager of Communications and Development 
Melinda Smith, Chief Financial Officer 
Michael Wilt, Manager of External Relations 
Nick Lawrence, Controller 
 
Guests 
 
Celeste Schaffer 
Karen Kennard, Greenberg Traurig, LLP 
Tim Nelson, Hilltop Securities 
 
Public Comment 
 
No Public Comment was given. 
 
 
 
 



  
 

 
 

2 

President’s Report 
 
Mr. Long referred the board to the program and financial reports included in the board packet 
and noted that there were no exceptional items in the reports. He then provided an update on the 
TSAHC Loan Committee which met in January and February, noting that Mr. Romero is the 
board representative on the Committee. Mr. Long explained that there were no new loans which 
required consideration however the Committee review program reports and to take action on 
pending items related to existing loans. Mr. Romero added that the Committee reviewed the 
processes for making loans and followed up on loans having problems to identify additional 
steps that can be taken to ensure that risks are minimized. 
 
Mr. Long provided a quick summary of 2017 homeownership program for the board. The 
corporation provided $35 million in down payment assistance grants to homebuyers and 
approximately $850 million in mortgage loans. Mr. Long compared the 2017 loan volume to the 
2016 volume, approximately $240 million. Mr. Long noted the phenomenal opportunity the 
Corporation had to serve so many people in Texas, as well as the capability of staff to step up to 
the opportunity when it arose.  
 
Mr. Long recognized the top lenders: Ms. Stacy Lynn Schriever and Ms. Ginger Smith with 
Premier Nationwide Lending, and Ms. Liz White with PrimeLending. Mr. Long also recognized 
the top mortgage companies: PrimeLending, Fairway Independent Mortgage Company, and 
Guild Mortgage Company. Mr. Long reminded the board that this information can also be found 
on the Corporation’s newly updated website.  
 
Mr. Jones asked for a report showing the increase in activity in 2018 and Mr. Long said that it 
could be provided. Discussion followed about the volume generated by TSAHC programs 
working with the new master servicer, Lakeview Loan Servicing. Ms. Taylor added that every 
month a report was provided to the board showing monthly activity under the homeownership 
programs. She also noted that Ms. Crim created a report showing all activity in 2017 that could 
be provided to the board, along with a press release that was issued to announce the top lenders 
and mortgage companies.  
 
Mr. Long informed the board that the homeownership team had conducted “Overcoming the 
Down Payment Hurdle” classes in January, and would be attending the Laredo Homebuyer Fair 
in March. Mr. Long then noted the Corporation received a $10,000 grant from JPMorgan Chase 
in support of the Housing Connection Training to be held in June and also received an additional 
$2,900 in gifts in support of the Housing Connection trainings from individual of mortgage loan 
officers, and realtors.  
 
Mr. Long informed the board the Corporation released its new website on January . He thanked 
Ms. Ross and Ms. Claflin for all their hard work and noted that staff worked with a third-party 
firm to make the updates, but the majority of the work was completed by staff.  
 
Mr. Long provided a summary of the conferences and meetings attended by staff during the last 
two months. Mr. Long, Ms. Crim and Mr. Almquist attended the National Council of State 
Housing Agencies (NCSHA) HFA Institute in D.C in January, noting that Mr. Romero also 
attended. Mr. Danenfelzer and Mr. Wilt represented the Corporation at the first session of the 
Rural Housing Preservation Academy held in San Antonio. Mr. Long noted that this initiative 



  
 

 
 

3 

was a partnership between the Corporation and the Federal Reserve Bank of Dallas to help 
community partners and other organizations preserving USDA affordable rental housing. Session 
two of the Academy would take place in Temple later in February. A total of six sessions were 
scheduled around the state of Texas. Mr. Long and Mr. Wilt attended the quarterly meeting of 
the Texas Interagency Council of Homelessness in January that was held in Austin.  
 
Mr. Long and Ms. Cynthia Leon attended the Texas Community Capital (TCC) board of 
directors meeting and strategic planning meeting held at the TSAHC offices. TSAHC’s role with 
TCC would be discussed under tab item 3. 
 
Mr. Wilt hosted the Kickoff meeting of the Urban Land Institute’s Strategic Affordable Housing 
Council at Corporation’s offices.  
 
Earlier in the month, Mr. Matias and Mr. Long attended the groundbreaking ceremony for the 
Glenn Heights Palladium Apartments. He noted that the project had received $18.5 million in 
bonds through the Corporation for construction of a new 270- unit multifamily housing 
community in Glenn Heights, Texas. 
.  
Mr. Long spoke briefly about the National Academy of State Health Policy. He stated that  Texas 
was as one of five states invited to participate in their Health and Housing Institute and  TSAHC 
was asked to partner on the initiative by Texas Health and Human Service Commission.  
 
Mr. Long stated that Mr. Matias had attended the NDC training Minneapolis in January for 
financial underwriting for multifamily properties. 
 
Mr. Danefelzer attended the IRS Advisory Committee on Tax-Exempt and Government Entities 
meeting in Washington D.C., Mr. Long noted that Mr. Danefelzer served on the subcommittee 
related to tax-exempt bonds. The subcommittee would issue a report that would include 
recommended changes to the IRS’s Voluntary Compliance Program for Issuers and Conduit 
Borrowers.  
 
Mr. Danefelzer, Mr. Matias, and Mr. Long attended the Re-imaging the American Dream 
Housing and Economic Development Opportunities Summit that was held at the AT&T 
Conference Center. The summit which was put on by the Federal Reserve Bank of Dallas and 
HousingWorks Austin focused on the challenges and opportunities creating equal access to 
affordable housing and economic opportunities for all.  
 
Mr. Long introduced TSAHC’s newest employee, Lacy Brown, who would be taking over as 
Corporate Secretary in the coming months. He noted that as an officer, her role as Corporate 
Secretary would require board approval, which would be on the agenda for the March board 
meeting.   
Mr. Long also recognized the Corporation’s two other new employees who would be introduced 
at the next board meeting, Ms. Holsinger and Ms. McGrew. Both were part of the 
homeownership team. 
 
Mr. Long introduced the professionals in the audience including Ms. Kennard, General Counsel 
with Greenberg Traurig, and Mr. Nelson, financial advisor with Hilltop Securities.  
 



  
 

 
 

4 

Mr. Long noted the date of the Corporation’s next board meeting which was scheduled for 
Thursday, March . 
 
Tab 1 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of Minutes of the Board Meeting 
held on December 14, 2017. 
 
Mr. Romero made a motion to approve the minutes of the Board Meeting held on December 14, 
2017. Mr. Evenwel seconded the motion. Mr. Jones asked for public comment and none was 
given. A vote was taken and the motion passed unanimously.    
 
Tab 2 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of the Texas State 

Affordable Housing Corporation’s 2018 Annual Action Plan.  
 
Mr. Wilt explained that the board approved the action of posting the draft Annual Action Plan on 
the Corporation’s website at the December board meeting. The Action Plan was made available 
for public comments on December , and the public comment period was scheduled to end 
January  but was left it open until January . The reason for the extension was that the public 
hearing had to be postponed from January  until January  due to inclement weather.  
 
Mr. Wilt noted that the Corporation did not receive any public comment, however staff  made 
some updates to the plan between the December Board Meeting and the February Board 
Meeting, specifically updating the number of homebuyers assisted in 2017 to reflect all the 
activities during the calendar year. Mr. Wilt noted the Corporation assisted more than 5,700 
homebuyers in 2017, which was almost triple the number served in 2016.  
 
Mr. Romero made a motion to approve the Corporation’s 2018 Annual Action Plan. Mr. Dietz 
seconded the motion. Mr. Jones asked for public comment and none was given. A vote was taken 
and the motion passed unanimously.     
 
Tab 3 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of Action by the Corporation 

related to Texas Community Capital. 
 
Mr. Romero reminded the Board that he had been representing Corporation’s board on the Texas 
Community Capital (TCC) board for a number of years.  The original objective for the 
partnership between the Corporation and TACDC related to TCC was to create an organization 
that could obtain CDFI status and have access to related funds for Corporation’s programs. 
Originally the Corporation gave TCC two years to achieve this goal; however the first 
application was not successful. Mr. Romero noted that TCC had created a Community Loan 
Center (CLC) program which was a great program utilized by other nonprofits across the state; 
unfortunately the CLC program was not related to affordable housing. Mr. Romero informed the 
board that he would be stepping down from the TCC Board, but Ms. Leon would continue to 
serve as the Corporation’s board representative on the TCC board. Mr. Romero proposed a time 
period of 180 days for TCC to seek or attain CDFI certification. If they didn’t, then Mr. Romero 
proposed that TSAHC end the partnership with TACDC related to TCC. Discussion followed 
and Mr. Long reiterated Mr. Romero’s proposal that would allow TCC to work towards a CDFI 
application. Mr. Long informed the board that a consultant had reviewed TCC’s eligibility and 
capacity for becoming a CDFI.  Mr. Long noted the potential   benefits to the Corporation being 
able to work with TCC should it received CDFI certification and to wait six months and see if 



  
 

 
 

5 

the application was submitted and approved. Mr. Romero agreed with Mr. Long and added that 
after six months the Board could revisit the partnership and determine how best to move forward.  
 
After some further discussion, a timeframe of six months was decided on and Mr. Danefelzer 
was selected to represent TSAHC on the board. 
 
Mr. Jones made a motion to approve this action by the Corporation related to Texas Community 
Capital. Mr. Romero seconded the motion. Mr. Jones asked for public comment and none was 
given. A vote was taken and the motion passed unanimously.     
  
Tab 4 Presentation and Discussion of, and Possible Approval to Publish for Public 

Comment, the Texas Foundations Fund Draft 2018 Guidelines. 
 
Mr. Wilt approached the Board asking for approval to publish the Texas Foundation Fund Draft 
2018 Guidelines. He stated that with the approval, the public comment period would begin on 
February  and close on Monday March . The public comments received would be reviewed and 
the guidelines would be brought back for the Boards approval in April. Mr. Wilt pointed out that 
the Draft Guidelines before the Board reflected a matching-grant structure that was now being 
used for the Texas Foundation Fund. Under that structure, partners would be selected every two 
years. All selected partners are eligible for matching grants to supplement public and private 
funds that they raise to support their own programs. The programs for eligible matching funds 
remain the same as the prior guidelines and include critical repairs of single-family homes or 
supportive housing services that help families and individuals avoid homelessness and 
unnecessary institutionalization. The threshold criteria for how partners are eligible can be found 
on the bottom of page 1 and the top of page 2.  
 
Mr. Romero made a motion to approve the publishing for Public Comment of the Texas 
Foundation Fund Draft 2018 Guidelines. Mr. Evenwel seconded the motion. Mr. Long asked for 
public comment and none was given. A vote was taken and the motion passed unanimously.     
 
Tab 5 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of a $100,000 commitment 

from the Corporation as part of a grant application to the Rebuild Texas 
Fund to support a special disaster recovery round of the Texas Foundations 
Fund. 

 
Ms. Claflin started by providing the Board with background information about the Rebuild Texas 
Fund. TSAHC and Enterprise Community Partners would submit a joint application to the 
Rebuild Texas Fund to support the special disaster recovery grants program. The program would 
provide grants of up to $50,000 to nonprofits providing critical home repairs and other housing 
services to households affected by Hurricane Harvey. Mr. Claflin then stated that TSAHC and 
Enterprise staff had agreed not to brand the program as a special funding round of Texas 
Foundations Fund or as Enterprise’s grants program, but instead to give it its own name and 
identity and then promote it as a partnership between TSAHC and Enterprise. The grant program 
would include technical assistance to help expand grantees capacity. It would be focused towards 
smaller organizations and grants amounts.  Larger funding amounts could be sought directly 
from Rebuild Texas or other grant-making organizations. Under this application, TSAHC and 
Enterprise would each receive $500,000 to administer grants, with a $1 million total. TSAHC 



  
 

 
 

6 

would focus on critical home repair, while Enterprise would support other housing assistance 
programs. 
 
Ms. Claflin pointed out to the Board that the application with Rebuild Texas was contingent 
upon a $100,000 commitment from TSAHC in match funding. This would give TSAHC 
$600,000 to administer for critical home repair. If the application was approved, TSAHC would 
create guidelines for administering the critical repair funding which would be presented to the 
board for review and possible approval at the March Board Meeting.  
 
Mr. Romero made a motion to approve $100,000 commitment from the Corporation as part of a 
grant application to the Rebuild Texas Fund to support a special disaster recovery round of the 
Texas Foundations Fund. Mr. Evenwel seconded the motion. Mr. Jones asked for public 
comment and none was given. A vote was taken and the motion passed unanimously.     
 
Tab 6 Review, Discussion and Possible Approval of the 2017 Annual Performance 

Review of the President of the Corporation and related actions. 
 
Mr. Romero made a motion to go into closed executive session. Mr. Evenwel seconded the 
motion. Mr. Jones asked for public comment and none was given. A vote was taken and the 
motion was approved. 
 
Tab 7 Closed Executive Session – Discussion regarding the Evaluation and Annual 

Performance Review of the President of the   Corporation. 
 
Mr. Jones called the board into closed meeting in accordance with Texas Government Code 
Section 551.074, personnel matters. The time was 11:41am. The board ended the closed meeting 
and resumed the open meeting at 1:00pm. Mr. Jones stated that no action was taken during the 
closed meeting. Instead, the board discussed the president’s annual performance evaluation.  
 
Mr. Romero made a motion to approve the review and recommend an increase in salary for the 
President based on his performance. Mr. Evenwel seconded the motion. Mr. Jones asked for 
public comment and none was given. A vote was taken on the motion and it passed unanimously. 
 
Closed Meeting 
 
Refer to Tab 7 
 
Open Meeting  
 
Mr. Long stated that he would keep the board informed about the March board meeting. He 
thanked the board for their time at the meeting today. 
Adjournment 
 
Mr. Jones adjourned the meeting at 1:02pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted by________________________________________________ 
Laura Ross, Corporate Secretary 



Tab 2  



 

 

Agenda It

Presentat
Applicatio
Applicatio
with proc

Summary

The Corp
GP, LLC (L
activity bo
at 6409 S
acquisitio
built  in  1
assistance
time to ap
the  autho
activity  b
drafting o
an anticip

Public Be

The  prop
developm
30% or les

Financial 

The  prop
approxim
credits un
costs, wh
costs, dev
 
The  total
instrumen
will  be  t
anticipate
equity. A 
cash estim

Market C

Walnut C
property 
lease up. 
complianc
property 

Te

tem:  

tion, discussio
ons for Alloca
ons to the Tex
eeds of futur

y: 

oration  recei
LIH) in March 
onds  for  the 
pringdale Roa
n  of  a  98  u
1972  and  is 
e contract. Th
pprove an ind
ority  to mov
bond  volume
of bond docu
pated bond cl

nefit: 

posed  project
ment. The app
ss than the ar

Summary: 

posed  acquis
ately  $19 mi
nder a fairly t
ile  renovatio
veloper fees a

  bond  amou
nts with  the 
he  permane
ed  interest  ra
seller note of
mated at $450

onditions: 

reek Apartme
was originally
The project d
ce  period.  A
is  located ne

exas State

on and possib
ation of Privat
xas Bond Rev
re debt for the

ived  an appli
2018 for the 
Walnut Cree
ad in Austin, 
nit multifam
nearing  the

he Corporatio
ducement re
ve  forward  w
e  cap,  unde
uments  to m
osing in July o

t  fulfills  the 
plicant is also
rea median in

ition  and  re
illion.  The  pr
ypical financi
on costs are e
and reserves a

unt  is  anticip
proceeds  fro
nt  lender  pr
ate of 4.8%. T
f $1 million, c
0,000 round o

ents sits near
y built  in 198
did receive 4%
Although  loca
ear many  com

e Afforda

ble approval o
te Activity Bo
view Board an
e Walnut Cre

ication  from
issuance of m
ek Apartment
Texas. The pr
ily  housing  c
e  end  of  its
on’s Board is b
solution and 
with  an  appli
rwriting,  pub
ove  the deve
of 2018.  

Corporation
o proposing to
ncome.  

ehabilitation
roposed  finan
ing structure.
estimated at 
account for t

pated  to  be 
om sale used 
roviding  an 
The  tax  cred
cash flow con
out the rema

r the intersec
83 and has ha
% housing tax
ated  in  a  mi
mmunity  serv

able Hous

 

Page 1 of 2 

of a resolutio
onds, Notices 
nd Declaratio
ek Apartmen

LIH Walnut C
multifamily pr
ts project,  lo
roject include
complex  that
s  current  ho
being asked a
provide staff
cation  for  pr
blic  hearings
elopment  tow

n’s  targeted 
o add 10 inco

of  Walnut  C
ncing  leverag
. Approximate
$3.98 million
he remaining

$15  million.
for acquisitio
approximate
its are estim
ntributions of
ining sources

ction of Sprin
ad a Section 
x credits in 20
xed  commer
vices  and  am

sing Corp

on regarding 
 of Intention 
n of Expectat
nts. 

Creek 
rivate 
cated 
es the 
t  was 
ousing 
at this 
f with 
rivate 
s  and 
wards 

housing  nee
ome restricte

Creek  Apartm
ges  tax‐exem
ely $9.25 mil
n or $40,620
g $5.8 million 

.  The  bonds 
on and  rehab
ly  $11  millio

mated  to be v
f $915,000 an
s.   

ngdale and M
8 project bas

000 and is nea
rcial  and  mu
menities. With

Map 

poration 

the submissio
to Issue Bon
tion to Reimb

ed  as  an  At
ed units for h

ments  has  a
mpt  bonds  an
lion will be u
0 per unit. Fin
in total costs

will  be  issu
bilitation acti
on  35‐year  m
valued at $5.
nd deferred d

Manor Roads i
sed rental co
ar the end of 
ultifamily  res
hin ½ mile o

of Project Area 

on of one or 
nds and State 
burse Expend

t‐risk  Preserv
ouseholds ea

a  total  budg
nd  4%  housin
sed for acqui
nancing costs
s.  

ued  as  short
vities. Chase
mortgage  wit
59 million  in
developer fee

in East Austin
ontract since 
its current 15
sidential  area
f  the  site  are

more 
Bond 
itures 

vation 
arning 

get  of 
ng  tax 
isition 
s, soft 

t‐term 
 Bank 
th  an 
n  total 
es and 

n. The 
initial 
5‐year 
a,  the 
e  two 

 



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation 

 
 

Page 2 of 2 

 

elementary  schools  and  students  from  these  schools  flow  into  Johnson High  School,  the  location  of 
Austin’s Liberal Arts and Science Academy, which was  ranked #27  in  the nation by U.S. News  for  the 
2017/18 school year. The project is also located within two miles of two full service grocery stores, Dell 
Children’s Hospital, and the 206 acre Little Walnut Creek Preserve and Greenbelt.  
 
The surrounding neighborhoods have seen significant growth  in density and home prices over the past 
10 years. In the past year home values in the 78723 zip code have increased 10.8% to $385,330. Median 

rental costs have also risen sharply, so the preservation of rental 
assistance  at  Walnut  Creek  will  have  significant  impacts  to 
reducing  impacts  that  increased  housing  costs  have  on  older 
neighborhoods.  
 
In  addition  to  good  access  to  services,  schools  and  parks,  the 
neighborhood  is  within  three  miles  of  the  State  Capitol,  the 
University of Texas and other employment drivers  for  the Austin 
area.   

Borrower Summary: 

The applicant, LIH Walnut Creek GP, LLC,  is a subsidiary entity of Levy Affiliated. Founded  in 1988, the 
company  develops  and manages  a mix  of  retail  centers,  office  buildings  and  apartment  complexes, 
largely concentrated in Southern California. In the past few years they have expanded by acquiring and 
preserving affordable housing complexes in Hawaii, Louisiana and North Carolina. Today, Levy Affiliated 
owns and manages 15 properties with 1,564 units of affordable housing.  
 
Staff  contacted  state  housing  finance  agencies  about  Levy Affiliated’s  track  record. Universally,  they 
received high marks on  their  compliance  track  record  and  condition of properties. Additionally,  they 
received  letters of  support  from  the California  Statewide Communities Development Authority and a 
resolution from the City of Austin in support of their plan to preserve the Walnut Creek Apartments.  

Staff Recommendation: 

Staff  recommends  that  the  Board  approve  the  resolution  regarding  the  submission  of  one  or more 
Applications for Allocation of Private Activity Bonds, Notices of Intention to Issue Bonds and State Bond 
Applications to the Texas Bond Review Board and Declaration of Expectation to Reimburse Expenditures 
with Proceeds of Future Debt for the Walnut Creek Apartments. 
 



Walnut Creet - Underwriting.xlsx
Project Summary

Project Summary

Applicant LIH Walnut Creek GP, LLC

Project Name Walnut Creek Apartments

Location
Address 6409 Springdale Road City Austin
County: Travis State TX Zip 78723

Census Tract: 48453002108

Funding Sources Amount % of Total

TSAHC Bonds ‐ Short Term* 15,000,000$      79.13%

Chase Bank 11,000,000$      58.03%
Seller Note 1,000,000$        5.28%
WNC ‐ Tax Credits 5,591,004$        29.49%
Deferred Developer Fee 450,233$           2.38%
Operating Cash Flow 915,137$           4.83%
Totals 18,956,374$      95%
* not included in total

Market Summary City County State Census Tract

Population 907,779             1,148,176         26,956,435       3,985                 
Average Age 32 33 34 28

Minority Pop. % 24.1% 23.9% 25.2% 38.4%

% Hispanic 34.5% 33.7% 38.6% 42.4%

% Persons with Disability 8.8% 8.7% 11.6% 12.4%

% Households that Rent 54.7% 48.0% 38.4% 44.7%

Persons w/o Insurance 16.8% 16.1% 19.3% 22.0%

Median Household Income 60,939.00$         64,422.00$         54,727.00$         40,990.00$        

Median Home Price $257,800 $253,600 $142,700 $173,700

Median Rents $1,106 $1,113 $911 $939

% Renters Who are Cost Burdened 47.2% 47.3% 44.4% 66.8%

% Attending Public Schools 90.7% 90.8% 93.3% 83.7%

Graduation Rate (Austin ISD) 72.4%

Unemployment 3.1% 4.6%

CRA Eleigible Census Tract Yes

Medically Underserved Area No

Projects Units

# of LI Apartment Projects 5 622

1 of 4



Walnut Creet - Underwriting.xlsx
Operating Proforma

Operating Proforma

Applicant LIH Walnut Creek GP, LLC

Project Name Walnut Creek Apartments

Number of Units 98 Affordable Units 97                   

Set‐Aside Requirement 39 Affordable % 99%

Accessible Unit Min. 5

Residential Income

Unit Type Unit Sq. Ft. Net Sq. Ft.  # units Rent Mo. Income  Inflator Rent Limiter Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 10 Year 15

1br/1ba 720 2880 4 1,147$            4,588$            1.02                30% AMI 55,056$                    56,157$                    57,280$                    58,426$                    59,594$                    65,797$                     72,645$                       

1br/1ba 720 22320 31 1,147$            35,557$         1.02                60% AMI 426,684$                  435,218$                  443,922$                  452,800$                  461,856$                  509,927$                  563,000$                     

1br/1ba 720 720 1 ‐$                ‐$                1.02                EO ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                              

‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                              

2br/1ba 864 4320 5 1,245$            6,225$            1.02                30% AMI 74,700$                    76,194$                    77,718$                    79,272$                    80,858$                    89,273$                     98,565$                       

2br/1ba 864 33696 39 1,245$            48,555$         1.02                60% AMI 582,660$                  594,313$                  606,199$                  618,323$                  630,690$                  696,333$                  768,807$                     

‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                              

3br/1ba 1056 1056 1 1,710$            1,710$            1.02                30% AMI 20,520$                    20,930$                    21,349$                    21,776$                    22,212$                    24,523$                     27,076$                       

3br/1ba 1057 17969 17 1,710$            29,070$         1.02                60% AMI 348,840$                  355,817$                  362,933$                  370,192$                  377,596$                  416,896$                  460,287$                     

‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                              

82961 98                         ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                              

Other income: 20.00$            1,960$            1.02                23,520.00$              23,990$                    24,470$                    24,960$                    25,459$                    28,109$                     31,034$                       

Potential gross income 1,531,980$              1,562,620$              1,593,872$              1,625,749$              1,658,264$              1,830,858$               2,021,415$                 

Residential vacancy loss 5.00% (76,599)$                   (78,131)$                   (79,694)$                   (81,287)$                   (82,913)$                   (91,543)$                   (101,071)$                   

Effective Gross Residential Income 1,455,381$              1,484,489$              1,514,178$              1,544,462$              1,575,351$              1,739,315$               1,920,344$                 

Operating Expenses TSAHC est. Borrower Yr 1 % EGI Variance Per Unit Inflator

General & Administrative 39,494$               35,000$               2.40 ‐11% 357$               1.03 35,000$                    36,050$                    37,132$                    38,245$                    39,393$                    45,667$                     52,941$                       

Management Fee 42,238$               60,889$               4.18 44% 621$               1.03 60,889$                    62,716$                    64,597$                    66,535$                    68,531$                    79,446$                     92,100$                       

Payroll and Related 128,674$            136,500$            9.38 6% 1,393$            1.03 136,500$                  140,595$                  144,813$                  149,157$                  153,632$                  178,102$                  206,468$                     

Maintenance & Repair 66,346$               61,500$               4.23 ‐7% 628$               1.03 61,500$                    63,345$                    65,245$                    67,203$                    69,219$                    80,244$                     93,024$                       

Utilities 101,234$            146,052$            10.04 44% 1,490$            1.03 146,052$                  150,434$                  154,947$                  159,595$                  164,383$                  190,565$                  220,917$                     

Insurance 28,616$               35,000$               2.40 n/a 357$               1.03 35,000$                    36,050$                    37,132$                    38,245$                    39,393$                    45,667$                     52,941$                       

Property Taxes 73,206$               89,826$               6.17 23% 917$               1.03 89,826$                    92,521$                    95,296$                    98,155$                    101,100$                  117,203$                  135,870$                     

Operating Debt Service Reserves 0.00 n/a ‐$                1.03 ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                              

Replacement reserves 29,400$               29,400$               2.02 0% 300$               1.03 29,400$                    30,282$                    31,190$                    ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                              

HTC/HOME Compliance Fees 3,880$                 3,880$                 0.27 n/a 40$                  1.03 3,880$                      3,996$                      4,116$                      4,240$                      4,367$                      5,063$                       5,869$                         

Bond Compliance Fees 4,410$                 4,410$                 0.30 0% 45$                  1.03 4,410$                      4,542$                      4,679$                      4,819$                      4,963$                      5,754$                       6,671$                         

Issuer Fee 0.00 1.03 ‐$                          

Other (specify): Security 75,000$               75,000$               5.15 765$               1.03 75,000$                    77,250$                    79,568$                    81,955$                    84,413$                    97,858$                     113,444$                     

Total Operating Expenses 592,498$            677,457$            14% 6,913.23$      677,457$                  697,781$                  718,714$                  708,149$                  729,394$                  845,567$                  980,244$                     

state avg 4,861.00$           per unit 6,913$                      7,120$                      7,334$                      7,226$                      7,443$                      8,628$                      10,002$                      

    Operating Expenses as a percentage of Effective Gross Income 46.5% 47.0% 47.5% 45.9% 46.3% 48.6% 51.0%

NET OPERATING INCOME 777,924$                 786,708$                 795,464$                 836,313$                 845,957$                 893,748$                  940,100$                    

2 of 4



Walnut Creet - Underwriting.xlsx
Operating Proforma

NET OPERATING INCOME 777,924$                 786,708$                 795,464$                 836,313$                 845,957$                 893,748$                  940,100$                    

PRIMARY DEBT SERVICE Principal Rate Amort Term Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 10 Year 15

15,000,000$      2.00% 0 2 ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                              

11,000,000$      4.80% 35 35 654,925$                  654,925$                  649,446$                  649,446$                  649,446$                  649,446$                  649,446$                     

‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                              

‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                              

‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                              

Total Primary Debt 11,000,000$      654,925$                  654,925$                  649,446$                  649,446$                  649,446$                  649,446$                  649,446$                     

5,000$                 98.00% 5,000$                      5,000$                      5,000$                      5,000$                      5,000$                      5,000$                       5,000$                         

Net Cashflow After Primary Debt 117,999$                  126,783$                  141,018$                  181,866$                  191,511$                  239,301$                  285,654$                     

DSCR Primary Debt 1.18 1.19 1.22 1.28 1.29 1.37 1.44

SOFT SUBORDINATE DEBT & EQUITY

5,591,004$         ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                              

Seller Note 1,000,000$         5.00% 75% Cash Flow 88,499$                    95,087$                    105,764$                  136,400$                  143,633$                 

450,233$            29,500$                    31,696$                    35,255$                    45,467$                    47,878$                    44,939$                    

‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                           ‐$                              

Total Secondary Debt/Equity 7,041,237$         29,500$                    31,696$                    35,255$                    45,467$                    47,878$                    44,939$                     ‐$                              

Estimated value of completed real estate 13,529,113$       Estimated Cap Rate 5.75%

TSAHC Bonds ‐ Short Term*

Chase Bank

TSAHC Issuer Fee

WNC ‐ Tax Credits

Deferred Developer Fee

3 of 4



Walnut Creet - Underwriting.xlsx
Summary Sources and Uses

Applicant LIH Walnut Creek GP, LLC

Project Name Walnut Creek Apartments

Number of Units 98

Sources Amount Amount Per Unit Percentage of Total

TSAHC Bonds ‐ Short Term* 15,000,000$                          153,061$                                79%

Chase Bank 11,000,000$                          112,245$                                58%

Seller Note 1,000,000$                            10,204$                                  5%

WNC ‐ Tax Credits 5,591,004$                            57,051$                                  29%

Deferred Developer Fee 450,233$                                4,594$                                    2%

Operating Cash Flow 915,137$                                9,338$                                    5%

Total Sources 18,956,374$                          193,432.39$                          100%

Uses

Acquisition 9,250,000$                            94,387.76$                            49%

Off‐Site Construction ‐$                                        0%

On‐Site Work ‐$                                        ‐$                                        0%

Site Amenities ‐$                                        ‐$                                        0%

Building Costs 3,980,781$                            40,620.21$                            21%

Other Const/Contingency 1,011,119$                            10,317.54$                            5%

Soft Costs 573,022$                                5,847.16$                              3%

Financing Costs 1,614,631$                            16,475.83$                            9%

Developer Fees 2,196,199$                            22,410.19$                            12%

Reserve Accounts 330,623$                                3,373.70$                              2%

Total Uses 18,956,375$                          193,432.40$                          100%

(Gap) / Reserve (1)$                                          

Percent of Developer Fee Deferred 20.50%

Summary of Sources and Uses

4 of 4



29730120.2 / 1001023191  

RESOLUTION NO. 18-___ 

RESOLUTION Regarding the Submission of one or more 
Applications for Allocation of Private Activity Bonds, Notices of 
Intention to Issue Bonds and State Bond Applications to the Texas 
Bond Review Board and Declaration of Expectation to Reimburse 
Expenditures with Proceeds of Future Debt for the Walnut Creek 
Apartments 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation 
(the “Corporation”) desires to submit one or more calendar year 2018 Applications for Allocation 
of Private Activity Bonds (collectively, the “Application”) to the Texas Bond Review Board in 
connection with tax-exempt obligations (the “Bonds”) relating to the qualified residential rental 
housing project located at 6409 Springdale Road, Austin, Texas 78723 (the “Project”); 

WHEREAS, the Corporation intends to issue the Bonds and loan the proceeds to LIH 
Walnut Creek Austin LP (the “Borrower”), which will use the proceeds for the acquisition, 
rehabilitation and equipping of the Project; 

WHEREAS, it is anticipated that the Borrower will make certain capital expenditures with 
respect to the Project and currently desires and expects to reimburse the capital expenditures 
with proceeds of such debt; 

WHEREAS, under Treas. Reg. § 1.150-2 (the “Regulation”), to fund such reimbursement 
with proceeds of tax-exempt obligations, the Corporation must declare its expectation to make 
such reimbursement; 

WHEREAS, the Corporation desires to preserve the ability of the Borrower to reimburse 
the capital expenditures with proceeds of tax-exempt obligations; and 

WHEREAS, the Board desires to make all other appropriate filings and requests to the 
Texas Bond Review Board to enable the Corporation to issue the Bonds. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION: 

1. That the President of the Corporation or any officer of the Corporation is hereby 
authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Application to the Texas Bond Review Board 
in connection with requesting allocation for the Bonds, together with any documents, certificates 
or instruments related thereto. 

2. That the President of the Corporation or any other officer of the Corporation is hereby 
authorized and directed to file with the Texas Bond Review Board one or more Notices of Intent 
to Issue Bonds and one or more State Bond Applications in connection with the Bonds and such 
officers are further authorized and directed to request that the application(s) be approved by the 
Executive Director of the Texas Bond Review Board in accordance with Chapter 181 of the Texas 
Administrative Code, as amended. 

3. That the President of the Corporation or any other officer of the Corporation is hereby 
authorized and directed to take any and all other actions necessary or incidental to securing the 
private activity bond allocation(s) and the approval of the Bonds from the Texas Bond Review 
Board. 



29730120.2 / 1001023191 2 

4. That the Corporation reasonably expects that the Borrower will reimburse capital 
expenditures with respect to the Project with proceeds of debt hereafter to be incurred by the 
Corporation, and that this resolution shall constitute a declaration of official intent under the 
Regulation.  The maximum principal amount of obligations expected to be issued for the Project 
by the Corporation is $16,000,000. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND EFFECTIVE this April 19, 2018. 

TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE 
HOUSING CORPORATION 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 



29730120.2 / 1001023191  

MINUTES AND CERTIFICATION 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
 § 
TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE § 
HOUSING CORPORATION § 

The Board of Directors of the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation (the 
“Corporation”) convened on April 19, 2018, at its regular meeting place, and roll was called of the 
duly constituted members of said Board of Directors, to-wit: 

Name Office 

Robert Elliott Jones Chairperson 
William H. Dietz Vice Chairperson 
Gerry Evenwel Director 
Jerry Romero Director 
vacancy Director 
  

and all of said persons were present except                                       , thus constituting a quorum.  
Whereupon, among other business, the following was transacted, to-wit:  a written resolution (the 
“Resolution”) bearing the following caption was introduced for the consideration of said Board: 

“RESOLUTION NO. 18-___ 

RESOLUTION Regarding the Submission of one or more 
Applications for Allocation of Private Activity Bonds, Notices of 
Intention to Issue Bonds and State Bond Applications to the Texas 
Bond Review Board and Declaration of Expectation to Reimburse 
Expenditures with Proceeds of Future Debt for the Walnut Creek 
Apartments” 

Upon motion duly made and seconded, the Resolution was finally passed and adopted by 
the following vote: 

         AYES            NOES           ABSTENTIONS 

 

MINUTES APPROVED AND CERTIFIED TO BE TRUE AND CORRECT and to reflect 
accurately the duly constituted officers and members of the Board of Directors of the Corporation, 
and the attached and following copy of such Resolution is hereby certified to be a true and correct 
copy of an official copy thereof on file among the official records of the Corporation. 



29730120.2 / 1001023191 2 

SIGNED this April 19, 2018. 

 
 
 
 
  
Secretary, Texas State Affordable Housing 
Corporation 



Tab 3  



#373625762v2 

  
 

CERTIFICATION 

 
THE STATE OF TEXAS 

 
§ 

 § 
TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE § 
HOUSING CORPORATION § 

 
I, the undersigned officer of the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation (the 

“Corporation”), do hereby certify as follows: 

1. The Board of Directors of the Corporation (the “Board”) convened on April 19th, 
2018, at the Corporation’s offices in Austin, Texas, and the roll was called of the duly constituted 
members of said Board, who are as follows: 

Name Office 
  
Robert Elliot Jones Chairperson 
William H. Dietz Vice Chairperson 
Gerry Evenwel Director 
Jerry Romero Director 
  

2. The officers of the Corporation (who are not Board members) are as follows: 

Name Office 
  
David Long President   
Janie Taylor Executive Vice President  
Melinda Smith Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer  
Laura Ross Secretary   
Cynthia Gonzales Assistant Secretary  
  

All Board members were present except                    , thus constituting a quorum. All of the 
officers of the Corporation (except the Secretary) were present at the meeting. 

3. Whereupon, among other business, the following written resolution (the 
“Resolution”) bearing the following caption: 

“RESOLUTION NO. 18-__ 
 

TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION 

APPROVAL OF LOAN AGREEMENT RELATING TO 
$1,000,000 REVOLVING LOAN TO BE MADE BY 
CORPORATION TO COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION OF BROWNSVILLE TO BE USE TO MAKE 
SINGLE FAMILY LOANS PURSUANT TO ITS MICASITA 
LOAN PROGRAM” 



 2 
 

was duly introduced for the consideration of said Board and said caption was read in full.  It was 
then duly moved and seconded that the Resolution be adopted; and, after due discussion and 
request for comments, said motion carrying with it the adoption of the Resolution, prevailed and 
carried by the following vote: 

        AYES         NOES         ABSTENTIONS 
   
   

4. That a true, full and correct copy of the Resolution adopted at the meeting 
described in the above is attached to this certificate; that the adoption of the Resolution will be 
duly recorded in the Board’s minutes of the meeting; that the persons named above are the duly 
chosen, qualified and acting members of the Board and officers of the Corporation as indicated; 
that each member of the Board was duly and sufficiently notified officially and personally, in 
advance, of the time, place and purpose of the aforesaid meeting, and that the Resolution would 
be introduced and considered for adoption at said meeting. 

SIGNED this 19th day of April, 2018. 

 
 
 ____________________________________ 
Laura Ross, Secretary 

     Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation 



-3- 

RESOLUTION NO. 18-__ 
 

TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION 

APPROVAL OF LOAN AGREEMENT RELATING TO $1,000,000 
REVOLVING LOAN TO BE MADE BY CORPORATION TO 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION OF 
BROWNSVILLE TO BE USE TO MAKE SINGLE FAMILY 
LOANS PURSUANT TO ITS MICASITA LOAN PROGRAM 

WHEREAS, the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation (the “Corporation”) has 
been duly created and organized pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions of Subchapter 
Y (Section 2306.551 et. seq.) of Chapter 2306, Texas Government Code, as amended, and other 
applicable provisions of Texas law (collectively, the “Act”); and 

WHEREAS, under the Act, the Corporation is authorized to perform activities and 
services that the Corporation’s Board of Directors determines will promote the public health, 
safety, and welfare through the provision of adequate, safe, and sanitary housing primarily for 
individuals and families of low, very low, and extremely low income, and such activities and 
services shall include engaging in lending transactions; and  

WHERAS, said activities and services include those permitted to be funded by the Texas 
Housing Impact Fund (“THIF”), a fund established and maintained by the Corporation, which 
include the provision of loans and lines of credit for the acquisition, rehabilitation and 
construction of single family residences meeting the requirements of the THIF policies and rules; 
and  

WHEREAS, at the December 15, 2016 meeting of the Board of Directors meeting, the 
Board approved, by motion, the making of a loan to Community Development Corporation of 
Brownsville (“CDCB”) in the maximum amount of $1,000,000, with the loan proceeds to be used 
by CDCB to make loans to qualified borrowers under CDCB’s “MiCasita” loan program (the 
“MiCasita Program”), in connection with the purchase and construction of single family homes in 
the Texas counties of Cameron, Hidalgo and Willacy; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has been updated by Corporation staff with regard to 
the status of the loan to CDCB and the use of loan proceeds for the MiCasita Program, and after 
due discussion and consideration, has determined to affirm its approval of the loan to CDCB and 
to authorize the President and the Executive Vice President to approve and execute all necessary 
documentation to evidence such loan. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION: 

Section 1. Approval of Loan.  The Board of Directors affirms its approval of a loan by 
the Corporation to CDCB in the maximum amount of $1,000,000 (the “CDCB Loan”), the 
proceeds of which are to be used by CDCB in making loans to eligible borrowers under its 
MiCasita Program.  The Board authorizes the President and the Vice President to approve, in 
consultation with counsel, the form and substance of all necessary documents relating to the 



-4- 

CDCB Loan, including but not limited to a revolving loan agreement and related security 
documents (collectively, the “Transaction Documents”).   

Section 2. Execution and Delivery of Transaction Documents.  The President and the 
Executive Vice President are each, in the name and on behalf of the Corporation, authorized by 
the Board of Directors, to execute and deliver the Transaction Documents to which the 
Corporation is a party, with such changes as the officer executing the same, in such officer’s sole 
discretion, approves.  Any such execution and delivery of the Transaction Documents, with any 
such changes, by any such officer of the Corporation shall be conclusive evidence that the same 
have been approved by the Board of Directors. 

Section 3. Execution and Delivery of Ancillary Documents.  The President and the 
Executive Vice President are each, in the name and on behalf of the Corporation, authorized by 
the Board of Directors, at any time before or after the execution and delivery of the Transaction 
Documents, to execute, acknowledge and deliver any and all such orders, directions, certificates, 
agreements, documents, instruments, amendments and other papers or items (collectively, 
“Ancillary Documents”), and to do or cause to be done any and all such acts and things 
(collectively, “Ancillary Actions”), which such officer, in such officer’s sole discretion and 
judgment, deems necessary or desirable in connection with the consummation of the transactions 
contemplated by the Transaction Documents, or as are otherwise authorized above.  The execution 
and delivery of any such Ancillary Documents and the taking of any such Ancillary Actions by 
such officer of the Corporation shall be conclusive evidence that the same have been approved by 
the Board of Directors. 

Section 4. Ratification of Prior Actions.  All actions taken prior to the date of this 
Resolution by any officer of the Corporation in the name and on behalf of the Corporation, with 
respect to any of the matters and transactions described above, are ratified, confirmed and 
approved by the Board of Directors. 

Section 5. Conflicting Prior Actions.  Any order, resolution, approval or any action of 
the Board of Directors in conflict with this Resolution is hereby repealed to the extent of any such 
conflict. 

Section 6. Severability.  Any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Resolution 
shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of 
such section, paragraph, clause, or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of 
this Resolution. 

Section 7. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and 
upon its adoption. 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 



-5- 

 

APPROVED AND EFFECTIVE this 19th day of April, 2018. 

TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
CORPORATION 
 
 
 
       
Chairperson 
Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
Laura Ross, Secretary 
Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation 
 



Tab 4  



1 
 

2018 Texas Foundations Fund Guidelines  
April 2018 
 
 
 

 
 
Texas Foundations Fund Overview 
Through its Texas Foundations Fund program, the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation (TSAHC) 
partners with nonprofit organizations across Texas to support housing services that meet critical housing 
needs of very low-income households in Texas.  
 
Matching Grant Structure 
For the 2018 funding round, the Texas Foundations Fund will provide matching grants to eligible public 
and private funds raised by selected partners (“Partners”). Public and private funds must have been 
received by Partners on or after January 1, 2018  and must be earmarked specifically for the program for 
which a matching grant from the Texas Foundations Fund is requested. 
 
The following are eligible for matching grants: 

• Individual donations 
• Foundation grants 
• Corporate grants or sponsorships 
• Government grants 
• In-kind donations of materials or professional services (volunteer labor does not qualify for 

matching grants) 
 
2018 Partner Application Process 
Partners eligible for matching grants will be selected every two years through an online application 
process. The online application will be available on TSAHC’s website at www.tsahc.org in April 2018.  
Interested applicants should first complete an eligibility quiz to determine if they may qualify as a Partner. 
Only organizations that pass the eligibility quiz will be instructed to complete the online application. 
 
Partner applications must be submitted online no later than 5:00 pm on Friday, June 1, 2018. All 
applicants meeting certain threshold requirements will qualify as Partners and will be eligible for matching 
grants. 
 
After submitting an application, applicants may not contact members of TSAHC’s Board of Directors 
regarding their application. Failure to comply will result in the disqualification of the application. 
 
If an application contains deficiencies that require clarification or correction, TSAHC staff will contact the 
applicant directly to request clarification or correction of such deficiencies.  Failure to respond to follow 
up requests for information will result in the disqualification of an application. 
 
Partner Threshold Requirements 
To qualify as a Partner eligible for a matching grant, applicants must meet the following threshold 
requirements: 
 

1. Organization Type: Applicant must be a nonprofit organization with a 501(c)(3) designation 
from the Internal Revenue Service. 

 



2 
 

2. Organization Experience: Applicant must have at least three years of experience operating 
housing programs in Texas. 

3. Program Experience: Applicant must have at least two years of experience operating the 
program for which a matching grant will be requested (see section below for additional 
program eligibility information). 

4. Fundraising Experience: Applicant must provide a letter of reference or support from a 
funder who has supported the program for which a matching grant will be requested. 

5. Government Grant Performance: Applicant must certify that it has not defaulted on or 
been required to repay  any federal, state or local government grants within the past two 
years. Applicants do not need to have prior experience with government grants to be eligible 
for a matching grant. 

6. Financial Requirements: Applicant must be able to provide annual financial audits for its 
two most recent fiscal years (TSAHC will accept financial reviews in lieu of audits from 
organizations with an annual operating budget of $750,000 or less) and must be prepared to 
submit its audits, as well as other financial documents, when requested. 

7. Household Requirements: To ensure the Texas Foundations Fund reaches those who are 
most in need, each applicant must utilize matching funds to serve only : 
a. Households at or below 50% of the area median family income (very low income)1, and 
b. Households with a household member with a disability, and/or households located in a 

rural community2. 
 
Eligible Programs 
Programs that provide the following housing services are eligible for a matching grant from the Texas 
Foundations Fund: 
 

1. The rehabilitation and/or critical repair of single family homes3  to remedy unsafe living 
conditions. 
• Critical repairs may also include accessibility modifications for homes with a household 

member with a disability. 
• Homes receiving repairs must be owner-occupied.  
• TSAHC will support the critical repair of single family rental homes owned and operated by 

the organization applying only if the repairs enhance accessibility for a renting household with 
an individual with a disability4 

                                                      
1 While an applicant’s program may serve households above this income level with other funding sources, a 
matching grant from the Texas Foundations Fund may only be used to serve households meeting this income 
requirement. TSAHC uses the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development’s Section 8 income limits to 
determine income eligibility for the Texas Foundations Fund program.  To review the current income limits, visit: 
www.huduser.org/portal/datasets/il.html 
2 TSAHC defines “rural” as a county that is outside a metropolitan statistical area (MSA), or a city or community 
that is: 1) outside the boundaries of an MSA; or 2) within the boundaries of an MSA, if it has a population of 25,000 
or less and does not share a boundary with an urban area (population larger than 25,000 within an MSA). 
3 TSAHC defines “single family home” as a residential property with an attached or detached dwelling that consists 
of (i) a single unit on an individual lot, or (ii) a single unit in a condo project, Planned Unit Development, or duplex, 
triplex or fourplex, or (iii) not more than four connected units, with each unit intended as housing for one family. 
Dwellings that are not titled as real estate, such as RVs and houseboats, are not eligible. 
4 In exceptional circumstances, TSAHC may allow a Partner to perform critical repairs on a rental home owned by a 
private landlord and occupied by a very low-income household.  Partners must notify TSAHC in advance if they 
wish to use a portion of their Texas Foundation Fund matching grant for this purpose.  Additional information, 
including documentation that the landlord is financially unable to perform the repairs, will be required. 

http://www.huduser.org/portal/datasets/il.html


3 
 

• All rehabilitation and/or critical repairs funded through the Texas Foundations Fund must be 
provided free of charge. 

 
2. The provision of supportive housing services that help individuals and families at risk of 

homelessness or unnecessary institutionalization gain and maintain their housing stability. 
Eligible supportive housing services include, but are not limited to:  
• the provision of alcohol and drug counseling, 
• adult education and/or job training, 
• mental health counseling, and/or 
• case management or services provided by a health care provider. 

 
Resident Services, such as afterschool tutoring programs and computer labs, are not considered 
supportive housing services and will not be eligible for a matching grant.  All supportive housing 
services funded through the Texas Foundations Fund must be provided free of charge to residents. 
Organizations that solely provide supportive services are not eligible for a matching grant. TSAHC 
will only consider organizations that own and operate housing with supportive services made 
available to the residents as a result of their occupancy.  

 
2018 Funding Availability and Timeline 
TSAHC provides the matching grants available through the Texas Foundations Fund by blending private 
donations with earned revenue from its affordable housing programs. TSAHC’s Board of Directors 
approves the funding available each year under the Texas Foundations Fund. While the total funding 
available for 2018 has not yet been determined, it is anticipated that at least $300,000 will be available this 
year.  The funding available to each Partner will depend both on the total funding available as determined 
by TSAHC’s Board of Directors and the number of Partners selected (estimated range $10,000-$30,000 
per year, per Partner). 
 
Please note that donors to the Texas Foundations Fund have the ability to request their funds be used 
within a specific city or region; as a result,depending on Partners’ service area(s), the maximum amount of  
funding available to each Partner may vary. 
 
It is anticipated that Partners will be announced and matching grants will become available in September 
2018. At that time, each Partner will have six months to access its matching grant.  Any funds not accessed 
during the initial six month period will be combined into a statewide pool and made available to other 
Partners on a first-come, first-awarded basis until all funds are depleted. TSAHC reserves the right to limit 
the total amount of funding available to each Partner from the statewide pool. 
 
All previous Texas Foundations Fund awardees are eligible to apply to be selected as a Partner for the 
2018 funding round, as long as they meet the Partner threshold requirements listed above and perfomed 
according to the grant agreement of  their most recent funding award.  

Partner Term and Disbursement of Grants 
Partners will be selected for a two-year term (“Partner Term”), with grant funding made available each 
year. To access matching grants, Partners must submit a funding request form provided by TSAHC that 
documents proof of public or private funds and proposed use of the matching grant.  A Partner may submit 
up to three funding requests during the initial six month period to access the full amount of its matching 
grant.  
 
A Partner must spend 100% of its matching grant and submit a report documenting use of the matching 
grant and updated financial information by the end of the first year of the Partner Term before accessing 
matching funds the following year. 



4 
 

 
Partner Agreement 
Partners will be required to execute a partner agreement that outlines:  

• a description of the program for which the matching grant will be used,  
• eligible expenditures5,  
• the process to request matching grants, 
• reporting requirements, and 
• TSAHC’s right to inspect properties or service records and to review financial documents.  

 
Failure to adhere to the terms of the partner agreement may result in the delay or cancelation of 
matching grants, termination of the partner agreement, or request for repayment of  all or part of 
the matching grants disbursed. 
 
Questions 
Questions should be submitted in writing to Michael Wilt by email at mwilt@tsahc.org. Applicants are 
highly encouraged to review the Texas Foundations Fund’s Question and Answer section of TSAHC’s 
website at www.tsahc.org for pertinent application information.  
 
 

                                                      
5 Partners must use 100% of their matching grant for direct costs to provide the program for which the matching 
grant is requested. These costs may include, but are not limited to, contractor fees, materials, salaries for staff 
performing critical repair work, salaries for staff providing supportive housing services, salaries for staff directly 
coordinating and supporting the program, travel expenses for staff directly coordinating and supporting the program, 
and building permits and inspection fees for homes to be repaired. The partner agreement will include a full list of 
expenses eligible for a matching grant. 



Tab 5  



    

  Texas Community Capital  
April 19, 2018 

 
 

 
 
Agenda Item 
 
Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of Texas Community Capital (TCC)’s Proposed Changes to 
Bylaws Relating to Increase in Number of TSAHC-Appointed Board Members and Other Changes to Board 
Composition. 
 
Summary 
 
Pursuant to discussions that were held by the Board at the February meeting of the Corporation, staff is 
working with TACDC and TCC regarding next-steps to be taken by TCC to become a certified Community 
Development Financial Institution (CDFI). As part of this process, the CDFI consultant has recommended to 
TCC to make the various changes to the TCC by-laws, including the following: 
 

1. Article III, regarding the formation and makeup of the Board of Directors for TCC has been amended 
to expand from five (5) Directors to a maximum of nine (9) Directors. The appointing agencies, Texas 
Association of Community Development Corporations and Texas State Affordable Housing 
Corporation, will each appoint three (3) Directors, or a total of six (6). The remaining three (3) at-large 
Directors will be appointed by the combined TCC Directors.  

 
Various other changes to the Bylaws are being proposed, including certain changes made to adhere to CDFI 
certification standards. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends that the Board approve the changes to the Texas Community Capital Organizational By-
Laws, Article III, as presented above. 
 



P

 

 
 P

T

m

C

 Q

P

p

N

o

 N

T

D

a

(“

D

A

co

as

n

m

re

TA

b

D

p

co

Ex

vo

in

T

a

roposed Am

owers 

he  Board  o

management 

orporation A

Qualifications

articipation a

erson on the

No Director s

ther than thr

Number of Di

he Board  of

Directors.     Tw

pproved  by 

“TSAHC Boar

Directors  sha

Association of

orporation.  

s  the  “Appo

on‐profit  co

majority  vote

esolution  of 

ACDC Board,

ut  in no eve

Director,  or  d

ersons servin

ontinue to se

xecutive Dire

oting memb

neligible to se

he Board,  in

nd communi

endments to

f  Directors 

of the busin

Act, the Artic

s 

as a member

e basis of rac

hall have  th

rough the ind

rectors 

f Directors w

wo   No more

the  Board  o

rd”), a Texas

all  be  appoi

f Community

The TACDC B

inting Autho

orporation.  O

e  by  the  oth

the  Board  o

, the numbe

ent  shall a de

decreasing  th

ng as directo

erve until su

ector of  the 

ber  of  the  Bo

erve on the B

 consideratio

ty represent

o Article III of

B

("Board  of 

ess and affai

les of Incorp

r of the Boar

e, creed, sex

e power  to 

dividual vote

will  consist  o

e than three

of  Directors 

s non‐profit c

inted  and  a

y Developme

Board, toget

orities”  and 

One  Directo

her  acting  D

of Directors 

er of Directo

ecrease have

he  total  num

ors at the tim

ch time as th

Corporation

oard  of  Dire

Board of Dire

on of this pr

tation in app

f the Texas C

ARTICLE I

Board of Dire

Directors") 

irs of this Co

oration, and

rd of Director

x, religion, or

appoint any 

 of that Direc

of  no  fewer 

 (3) Director

of  the  Texa

corporation.

approved  by

ent Corporat

her with the

each  individ

orUp  to  thre

Directors  of 

and  approv

rs may be  in

e  the effect 

mber  of Dire

me of adoptio

heir replacem

n,  if one  is  s

ectors.    All  o

ectors. 

rocess, will c

ointing new 

Community C

II 

ectors 

of  this  Cor

orporation, su

 these Bylaw

rs (a "Directo

r national ori

other mem

ctor. 

than  five  (5

rs shall be ap

as  State  Affo

, and no mo

y  the  Board

tions (“TACD

e TSAHC Boa

dually  an  “Ap

ee  (3)  Direc

the  Board  o

val  by  each  o

ncreased or d

of  shortenin

ectors  to  les

on of this am

ments have b

selected,  sha

other  emplo

consider geo

board memb

Capital Bylaw

rporation  is 

ubject to the

ws. 

or") shall not

gin.  

ber of the B

)  and  no mo

ppointed by 

ordable  Hou

ore  than  thre

d  of  Directo

DC Board”), a

rd, are heret

ppointing Au

ctors  shall  b

of  Directors.

of  the  TSAH

decreased fr

ng  the  term 

ss  than  thre

mendment to

been named

all  serve as a

oyees  of  the

graphy, dive

bers. 

ws.  

vested  with

e Texas Non‐

t be denied t

Board of Dire

ore  than  nin

resolution o

using  Corpor

ee  (3) Two o

ors  of  the  T

a Texas non‐

tofore referr

uthority”,  a  T

be  appointe

.    Upon  ma

HC  Board  and

rom time to 

of an  incum

e Directors. 

o the Bylaws

d and seated

an ex‐officio 

e  Corporatio

ersity, experi

h  the 

Profit 

o any 

ectors 

ne  (9) 

of and 

ration 

of the 

Texas 

profit 

red to 

Texas 

ed  by 

ajority 

d  the 

time, 

mbent 

  The 

s shall 

.  The 

 non‐

n  are 

ence, 



 Te

D

a

D

so

ev

fo

sh

ca

A

D

a

m

re

te

o

 N

Ea

n

 R

A

th

sp

 R

A

th

th

m

g

C

C

fi

m

 V

erm and Elec

Directors shal

bove  shall  i

Director to an

o  such  that 

very two yea

our years. An

hall be filled 

alled  for  th

Appointing Au

Directors  wh

ppointed or 

made  that  te

eplaced the t

erm expired 

r replacemen

Nomination P

ach  Appoint

ominated by

esignation 

Any Director m

he  Board  of 

pecified ther

emoval 

Any Director m

he entire Bo

his  purpose,

materially  bre

rossly  neglig

orporation, 

orporation, o

rst be notifi

meeting at wh

acancies 

ction of Direc

ll serve term

n  its  initial 

n initial term 

each appoin

ars. The Dire

ny directorsh

at the next 

at  purpose 

uthority. 

ose  terms 

until their su

erm will  be 

term of the r

(i.e. the new

nt). Director 

Process 

ting  Authori

y the Board o

may resign a

Directors.   

rein. 

may be remo

ard of Direct

  "cause"  fo

eaches  or  ha

gent  in  carr

engages  in a

or is convicte

ed  about  th

hich the vote

ctors 

ms of four yea

appointmen

of two years

nting authori

ctor appoint

hip to be fille

regular mee

pursuant  to

have  expire

uccessors ar

for  the  term

replacement 

w remaining t

being replac

ity  shall  nom

of Directors

t any time by

Such  resign

oved withou

tors, at a reg

or  removal  s

abitually  neg

rying  out  h

any other ac

ed of a felon

e  considerat

e takes place

ars, howeve

nts  name  on

s and the oth

ty  fills appo

ed by the Bo

ed by reason 

eting of the B

o  the  revise

ed  may  con

e chosen.   W

m  identified 

shall will be

term does no

ced. 

minate  thei

y delivering w

nation  shall 

t  with cause

gular or spec

shall  be  dee

glects  his  du

is  duties  as

ct materially

ny.  Any direc

tion by writt

.  

r each. Each

ne  stagger  t

her director t

oints at  least

oard of Direc

of an increa

Board of Dire

ed  Bylaws  p

tinue  servin

When a re‐ap

at  re‐appoin

e considered 

ot begin on o

r  respective

written notic

take  effect 

e, at any tim

cial meeting

emed  to  ex

uties  as  a Di

s  a  Director

y detrimenta

ctor under co

ten notice  a

h Appointing 

he  terms  of

to an initial t

t one board 

ctors shall fill

ase in the nu

ectors or at 

previously  ap

ng  until  the

ppointment o

ntment.   W

effective on 

of the date o

e  Directors 

ce to the Sec

upon  receip

me, by a two‐

g called  for t

ist  if  a  trus

irector  of  th

r,  engages 

l  to  the bes

onsideration

at  least  five 

Authority na

f  their  appo

term of four 

vacancy me

l an initial te

mber of Dire

a special me

pproved  by

ey  are  eithe

or replacem

hen  a  Direct

the date tha

of re‐appoint

and  one  ca

cretary or Ch

pt  or  at  the 

‐thirds major

hat purpose

stee  willfully

he  Corporatio

in  fraud  on

t  interests o

n of removal 

days prior  t

amed 

ointed 

years 

ember 

rm of 

ectors 

eeting 

each 

er  re‐

ent  is 

tor  is 

at the 

tment 

an  be 

hair of 

time 

rity of 

.   For 

y  and 

on,  is 

n  the 

of  the 

must 

o  the 



V

D

th

 C

D

D

th

p

d

a

m

acancies  sh

Directors that

he Board of D

ompensation

Directors shal

Directors, ma

heir  duties  f

roperty to, o

oes not  limit

n  obligation

member of its

all  be  filled

t they are re

Directors sha

n  

ll not receive

ay  be  compe

or  the  Corpo

or guarantee

t the Corpor

  to  a  lendin

s Board of Di

d  by  the  re

esponsible to

all be filled by

e any salarie

ensated  for  a

oration.    Th

e the obligati

ration’s abilit

ng  entity  of 

rectors. 

spective  Ap

o appoint.   T

y the Board o

s for their se

any  actual  e

e  Corporatio

ion of, any D

ty to  loan m

which  the 

pointing  Au

The Vacancy 

of Directors.

ervices, but, 

expenses  inc

on  shall  not 

Director or O

oney or pro

Director  is  a

uthority  with

of the Direc

by resolutio

curred  in  the

make  any  l

Officer, howe

perty or oth

an  employe

h  respect  to

ctor appointe

on of the Boa

e  performan

oan  of mon

ever this prov

erwise guara

e,  principle, 

o  the 

ed by 

ard of 

nce  of 

ey  or 

vision 

antee 

or  a 



 
 

February 12, 2010                                                                                                                                            P a g e  | 1 

 
BY-LAWS OF TEXAS COMMUNITY CAPITAL, INC. 

 
ARTICLE I 

 
These Bylaws (the "Bylaws") constitute the code of rules adopted by the TEXAS COMMUNITY CAPITAL, INC. 
for the regulation and management of its affairs. 

 
ARTICLE II 

Purpose 
 

Texas Community Capital (the “Corporation”) shall exist for the purpose of providing loan and investment products, 
development services and other related activities to residents of underserved communities either directly or through 
community development financial institutions (CDFIs) and community development corporations (CDCs), and similar 
community lenders in order to expand the availability of funds for affordable housing and other community 
development investments. The mission of the Corporation is to promote economic and community development in low-
income communities. The Corporation shall be and is a non-profit corporation under the laws of the State of Texas. The 
service area of the Corporation is the entire United States with a focus on low income and under-served Texas areas. 

 
                               ARTICLE III 

                         Board of Directors 

 
(1) Powers 

The Board of Directors ("Board of Directors") of this Corporation is vested with the management of the 
business and affairs of this Corporation, subject to the Texas Non-Profit Corporation Act, the Articles of 
Incorporation, and these Bylaws. 

 
(2) Qualifications 

 
Participation as a member of the Board of Directors (a "Director") shall not be denied to any person on 
the basis of race, creed, sex, religion, or national origin.  

 
No Director shall have the power to appoint any other member of the Board of Directors other than 
through the individual vote of that Director. 

 
(3) Number of Directors 

 
The Board of Directors will consist of no fewer than five and no more than nine Directors.   No more than 
three Directors shall be appointed and approved by the Board of Directors of the Texas State Affordable 
Housing Corporation (“TSAHC Board”), a Texas non-profit corporation and no more than three of the 
Directors shall be appointed and approved the Board of Directors of the Texas Association of Community 
Development Corporations (“TACDC Board”), a Texas non-profit corporation.  The TACDC Board, together 
with the TSAHC Board, are heretofore referred to as the “Appointing Authorities” and each individually an 
“Appointing Authority.  Up to three Directors shall be appointed by majority vote by the acting Directors of 
the Board.  Upon majority resolution of the Board of Directors and approval by each of the TSAHC Board and 
the TACDC Board, the number of Directors may be increased or decreased from time to time, but in no event 
shall a decrease have the effect of shortening the term of an incumbent Director, or decreasing the total number 
of Directors to less than three Directors.   The persons serving as directors at the time of adoption of this 
amendment to the Bylaws shall continue to serve until such time as their replacements have been named and 



 
 

February 12, 2010                                                                                                                                            P a g e  | 2 

seated.  The Executive Director of the Corporation (if one is selected) shall serve as an ex-officio non-voting 
member of the Board of Directors.  All other employees of the Corporation are ineligible to serve on the Board 
of Directors. 
 
The Board, in consideration of this process, will consider geography, diversity, experience, and community 
representation in appointing new board members. 

 
(4) Term and Election of Directors 

 
Directors shall serve terms of four years.  Each Appointing Authority shall stagger the terms of their 
appointed Director such that each appointing authority appoints at least one board member every two 
years. Any directorship to be filled by reason of an increase in the number of Directors shall be filled at 
the next regular meeting of the Board of Directors or at a special meeting called for that purpose pursuant 
to the revised Bylaws previously approved by each Appointing Authority. 
 
Directors whose terms have expired may continue serving until they are either re-appointed or until their 
successors are chosen.  When a re-appointment is made that term will be for the term identified at re-
appointment.  When a Director is replaced the term of the replacement will be the remaining term of the 
Director being replaced. 
 

(5) Resignation 
 
Any Director may resign at any time by delivering written notice to the Secretary or Chair of the Board of 
Directors.  Such resignation shall take effect upon receipt or at the time specified therein. 

(6) Removal 
 
Any Director may be removed with cause, at any time, by a two-thirds majority of the entire Board of 
Directors, at a regular or special meeting called for that purpose.  For this purpose, "cause" for removal shall 
be deemed to exist if a trustee willfully and materially breaches or habitually neglects his duties as a Director 
of the Corporation, is grossly negligent in carrying out his duties as a Director, engages in fraud on the 
Corporation, engages in any other act materially detrimental to the best interests of the Corporation, or is 
convicted of a felony.  Any director under consideration of removal must first be notified about the 
consideration by written notice at least five days prior to the meeting at which the vote takes place.  

(7) Vacancies 
 
Vacancies shall be filled by the respective Appointing Authority with respect to the Directors that they are 
responsible to appoint.  The Vacancy of the Director appointed by the Board of Directors shall be filled by the 
Board of Directors.   

 

(8) Compensation  
 
Directors shall not receive any salaries for their services, but, by resolution of the Board of Directors, may be 
compensated for any actual expenses incurred in the performance of their duties for the Corporation.  The 
Corporation shall not make any loan of money or property to, or guarantee the obligation of, any Director or 
Officer; however this provision does not limit the Corporation’s ability to loan money or property or otherwise 
guarantee an obligation to a lending entity of which the Director is an employee, principle, or a Member of its 
board of directors. 

 



 
 

February 12, 2010                                                                                                                                            P a g e  | 3 

                                                                    ARTICLE IV 

Committees 

(1) Standing Committees 
 
The Board of Directors may from time to time designate and appoint standing or temporary committees by 
majority vote of the Board of Directors.  Such committees shall have and exercise such prescribed authority as 
is designated by the Board of Directors.  The Board Chair of the Board of Directors (the Board Chair”) shall 
appoint the Chair of any such committee. The Directors may authorize these committees to exercise any 
powers, responsibilities, and duties consistent with the Articles of Incorporation and these Bylaws. 

 
ARTICLE V 

Advisory Board 

The Board of Directors may provide a formal process for community development leaders and representatives of low-
income communities to advise the Corporation on its decisions regarding the Corporation’s programs, loans, 
investments, development services (technical assistance) and capital development through the creation of Advisory 
Boards.  The Board of Directors may appoint Advisory Members from lenders eligible to receive loans and investments 
from the Corporation; from financial institutions, corporations or foundations which have made capital available to the 
Corporation in the form of grants, loans or investments; from local, state and national organizations dedicated to the 
field of community development, or may appoint other individuals from the community. An Advisory Board may meet 
in person or by electronic means. 

The responsibilities of an Advisory Board will be determined by the Board of Directors. 

 

ARTICLE VI 

Code of Ethics 

It is imperative to the success of the Corporation that there be a fully informed, responsive, and reasonable Board of 
Directors.  To accomplish this end, all Directors shall conduct themselves at all times in the best interest of the 
Corporation.  In this regard, each Director shall abide by the following "Code of Ethics."  While no code or set of rules 
can be framed which will particularize all the duties of a Director, the following code of ethics shall serve as a general 
guide.  The enumeration of particular duties should not be construed as a denial of the existence of others equally 
imperative, though not specifically mentioned.   

(1) Directors shall put forth their best effort to attend all meetings and constructively participate in the meetings.   

(2) Directors shall be responsible for insuring that adequate and correct information is presented to public. 

(3) Directors shall exercise good judgment in the control and use of confidential information that may from time 
to time come into their possession.  No Director shall use confidential information gained by reason of being a 
Director for personal gain to the detriment of the Corporation.   

(4) Each Director shall serve as a public relations agent for the Corporation and therefore shall work diligently and 
properly to promote its goals and objectives while keeping abreast with its overall progress. 
 



 
 

February 12, 2010                                                                                                                                            P a g e  | 4 

(5) Conflict of Interest and Nepotism: Directors shall fully comply with the Conflict of Interest Policy adopted by 
the TCC Board of Directors. 

 

ARTICLE VII 

Board Meetings 
 

(1) Place of Board Meetings 
 
Meetings of the Board of Directors, regular or special, will be held in person or by electronic means at a place 
designated by the Board Chair. 

(2) Regular and Special Meetings 
 
Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held each quarter, or more frequently as deemed necessary 
by the Board of Directors.  The Board Chair or any five Directors may call special Meetings. 

(3) Notice of Board Meetings 
 
Notice of the date, time, and place of regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be given to each  
irector by regular mail, telephone (including voice mail), facsimile, or electronic e-mail no less than five 
business days prior to the meeting.  Notice of the date, time, and place of special meetings shall be given to 
each Director by telephone (including voice mail), facsimile, or electronic e-mail, no less than twenty-four 
hours prior to the meeting, with the exception of special meetings held to amend the Articles of Incorporation 
or these Bylaws, for which a five-day written notice by mail or facsimile shall be required. 

(4) Waiver of Notice 
 
Attendance by a Director at any meeting of the Board of Directors will constitute a waiver of notice of such 
meeting except where such Director attends the meeting for the express purpose of objecting at the beginning 
of the meeting to the transaction of business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened. 

(5) Quorum 
 
A majority of the incumbent Directors (not counting vacancies) shall constitute a quorum for the conduct of 
business.  At meetings of the Board of Directors where a quorum is present, a majority vote of the Directors 
attending shall constitute an act of the Board of Directors unless a greater number is required by the Articles of 
Incorporation or by any provision of these Bylaws. 

(6) Actions without a Meeting 
 
Any action required or permitted to be taken by the Board of Directors under the Texas Non-Profit 
Corporation Act, the Articles of Incorporation, and these Bylaws may be taken without a meeting, if all 
Directors individually and collectively consent in writing, setting forth the action to be taken. Such unanimous 
written consent shall have the same force and effect as a unanimous vote of the Board of Directors. 

 

 

 



 
 

February 12, 2010                                                                                                                                            P a g e  | 5 

ARTICLE VIII 

Officers 

(1) Roster of Officers 
 
The Corporation shall have a Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary, and Treasurer.  The Corporation may have, at the 
discretion of the Board of Directors, such other officers as may be appointed by the Directors.  One person 
may hold two or more offices, except that the office of President and Secretary must be held by different 
people.  

(2) Selection and Removal of Officers 
 

All officers shall serve one year terms.   The election shall be conducted at the regularly scheduled Board of 
Directors meeting held in the first quarter of each year and following the election of the new Directors filling 
expired terms, or as soon as practical thereafter.  Officers shall remain in office until their successors have 
been selected. Officers may serve two consecutive terms before replacement. The election of officers shall be 
by majority vote of the Directors attending the meeting at which a quorum is present. 

(3) Vacancies 
 

 If a vacancy occurs during the term of office for any elected officer, the Board of Directors shall fill the 
vacancy as soon as practical by appointing a new officer by majority vote of Directors present at which a 
quorum is present. 
 

(4) Chair 
 

The Chair will supervise and control the affairs of the Corporation and shall exercise such supervisory powers 
as may be given him or her by the Board of Directors. 

  The Chair will perform all duties incident to such office and such other duties as may be provided in these 
bylaws or as may be prescribed from time to time by the Board of Directors.  The Chair shall preside at all 
meetings of the Board of Directors and shall exercise parliamentary control. 

  The Chair shall serve as an ex-officio member of all standing committees, unless otherwise provided by the 
Board of Directors or these Bylaws.   

  The Chair shall, with the advice of the Board of Directors and in accordance with the requirements of these 
Bylaws, set and cause the secretary to give notice of the agenda for each meeting of the Board of Directors. 

(5)  Vice Chair 

  The Vice Chair shall act in place of the Chair in the event of the chair's absence, inability, or refusal to act, and 
shall exercise and discharge such other duties as may be required by the Board of Directors. The Vice Chair 
shall serve as the parliamentarian and interpret any ambiguities of the Bylaws. 

(6)  Secretary 

  The Secretary will perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other duties as may be 
required by law, by the Articles of Incorporation, or by these Bylaws. 

  The Secretary shall attest to and keep the Bylaws and other legal records of the Corporation, or copies thereof, 
at the principal office of the Corporation. 



 
 

February 12, 2010                                                                                                                                            P a g e  | 6 

  The Secretary shall take or ensure that someone takes minutes of all meetings of the committees, Board of 
Directors, and members, and shall keep copies of all minutes at the principal office of the Corporation. 

The Secretary shall keep a record of the names and addresses of the Directors and members at the principal office 
of the Corporation. 

The Secretary shall, with the approval of the Board of Directors, set up procedures for any elections held by the 
Corporation.  The Secretary shall keep a record of all votes cast in such elections.  
 
The Secretary shall ensure that all records of the Corporation, minutes of all official meetings, and records of all 
votes, are made available for inspection by any member of the Board of Directors at the principal office of the 
Corporation during regular business hours. 

The Secretary shall see that all notices are duly given in accordance with these Bylaws or as required by law. 

The Secretary shall see that all books, reports, statements, certificates, and other documents and records of the 
Corporation are properly kept and filed.  

In the case of the absence or disability of the Secretary, or the Secretary's refusal or neglect to fulfill the duties of 
Secretary, the Vice Chair shall perform the functions of the Secretary. 

 

(7) Treasurer 

The Treasurer will have charge and custody of all funds of the Corporation, will oversee and supervise the 
financial business of the Corporation, will render reports and accountings to the Directors as required by the 
Board of Directors, and will perform in general all duties incident to the office of Treasurer and such other duties 
as may be required by law, by the Articles of Incorporation, or by these Bylaws, or which may be assigned from 
time to time by the Board of Directors. 

The Treasurer and the staff of the Corporation shall devise a plan providing for the acceptance and disbursement 
of all funds of the Corporation, which shall be approved by the Board of Directors. 

The Treasurer, with the approval of the Board of Directors, shall set up all checking, savings, and investment 
accounts of the Corporation and deposit all such funds in the name of the Corporation in such accounts.  

The Treasurer's signature shall be one of the two authorized signatures for all checking, savings and investment 
accounts of the Corporation. The signature of the Corporation’s Executive Director will be the other authorized 
signature for all checking, savings and investment accounts of the Corporation. 

The Treasurer shall render to the Chair and the Board of Directors, upon request, an accounting of all 
transactions and of the financial conditions of the Corporation. 

The Treasurer shall keep all financing records, books, and annual reports of the financial activities of the 
Corporation at the principal office of the Corporation and make them available at the request of any Director or 
member of the public during regular business hours for inspection and copying. 

 

 

 

 



 
 

February 12, 2010                                                                                                                                            P a g e  | 7 

ARTICLE IX 

Rules of Procedure 

 

The proceedings and business of the Board of Directors shall be governed by following parliamentary 
procedures. 

 

ARTICLE X 

Executive Director 

The Board of Directors may, upon resolution, appoint an Executive Director to serve at the discretion of the 
Board of Directors and to carry out whatever tasks the Board of Directors from time to time resolves.  The 
Executive Director shall be paid an annual salary set by the Board of Directors.  Subject to such supervisory 
powers as are vested in the Board of Directors, the Executive Director shall supervise, direct, and control the 
business of the Corporation and actively manage its business, and shall have such other powers and duties as may 
be prescribed by the Board of Directors or by these Bylaws. 

The Executive Director may engage in negotiations involving commitments of the resources of the Corporation 
or the acceptance of money or resources by the Corporation in furtherance of the purposes of the Corporation as 
set out in the Articles of Incorporation and these Bylaws. 

The Executive Director shall generally be expected to attend all meetings of the Board of Directors and meetings 
of all Advisory Boards. 

  

ARTICLE XI 

Indemnification 

The Corporation will provide indemnification insurance for its Directors at such time that the Corporation begins 
implementation of its lending and investment programs, and the Board of Directors shall select the amount and 
limits of such insurance policy. 

To the extent permitted by law, any person (and the heirs, executors, and administrators of such person) made or 
threatened to be made a party to any action, suit, or proceeding by reason of the fact that he is or was a Director 
or Officer of the Corporation shall be indemnified by the Corporation against any and all liability and the 
reasonable expenses, including attorney's fees and disbursements, incurred by him (or by his heirs, executors or 
administrators) in connection with the defense or settlement of such action, suit, or proceeding, or in 
connection with any appearance therein, except in instances where the person failed to act in good faith and for 
a purpose which he or she reasonably believed to be in the best interests of the Corporation, the person had  
reasonable cause to believe that his or her conduct was unlawful, or the person shall be adjudged to be liable for 
misconduct or negligence in the performance of a duty.   

 



 
 

February 12, 2010                                                                                                                                            P a g e  | 8 

ARTICLE XII 

Operations 

(1) Execution of Documents 
 

Unless specifically authorized by the Board of Directors or as otherwise required by law, all final contracts, 
deeds, conveyances, leases, promissory notes, or legal written instruments executed in the name of and on 
behalf of the Corporation shall be signed and executed by the Executive Director or the Chair/Vice Chair (or 
such other person designated by the Board of Directors), pursuant to the general authorization of the Board.  
Financial Transactions, including loans and investments made by the Corporation shall require majority 
approval of the Board of Directors unless such approval is delegated by resolution of the Board of Directors.   

(2) Records 
 
The Corporation will keep correct and complete records of account and will also keep minutes of the 
proceeding of the meetings of the Board of Directors and Committees.  The Corporation will keep at its 
principal place of business the original or a copy of the Bylaws, including amendments to date certified by the 
Secretary of the Corporation. 

(3) Inspection of Books and Records 
 

All books and records of this Corporation may be inspected by any Director and each Appointing Authority for 
any purpose at any reasonable time on written demand. 

(4) Amendments 
 

The Board of Directors may adopt Articles of Amendment (amending the Articles of Incorporation) by a vote 
of two-thirds of Directors present at a meeting where a quorum is present.  Articles of Amendment must be 
adopted in accordance with Texas law.  These Bylaws may be amended at any time by a vote of the majority 
of Directors at a meeting where a quorum is present; provided, however, that an amendment to any of Article 
III hereof must also be approved by each Appointing Authority to become effective. 

(5) Fiscal Year  
 

The fiscal year for the Corporation will be the calendar year, January 1 to December 31. 

(6) Audit 
 

The Corporation shall have an annual audit to be completed by June 30 of each year for the previous fiscal 
year by a certified public accountant. 

 

CERTIFICATION 

I hereby certify that these Bylaws were adopted by the Board of Directors of Texas Community Capital, Inc. at 
its meeting held on _____________ and were also approved by each Appointing Authority. 

 

___________________________________ 

Secretary 



Tab 6  



    

  Texas Community Capital  
April 19, 2018 

 
 

 
 
Agenda Item 
Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of the Appointment of Member(s) to the Board Members of 
Texas Community Capital, LLC  
 
Summary 
Pursuant to Article 3 of the Texas Community Capital By-Laws, the Texas State Affordable Housing 
Corporation, as an appointing agency of Texas Community Capital, shall have the right to appoint up to three 
members to the Texas Community Capital Board of Directors.  Staff has worked to find a third member to 
represent the Corporation’s interest and is requesting approval of the appointment of Mr. Roy Nash.  
 
Mr. Nash serves as the President and CEO of NeighborWorks® Waco and has over 38 years of experience in 
the housing and building industry. He serves on the Visibility and Resource Development Committee for 
NeighborWorks® America as well as the NeighborWorks America HomeOwnership Steering Committee and 
the National NeighborWorks® Association. He is the founding and current chair of the NeighborWorks® 
Alliance of Texas, a collaboration of Texas NeighborWorks® organizations. Mr. Nash is the current vice-chair 
of the Waco Housing Coalition, and he also serves on the boards of the Heart of Texas Builders Association, 
the Texas Association of Builders and the Heart of Texas Workforce Solutions. 
 
The Corporation has worked with Mr. Nash on several projects over the years. Most recently, 
NeighborWorks® Waco has been a Local Partner with the Corporation’s Affordable Communities of Texas 
Land Banking Program. Mr. Nash’s term will begin in May 2018 and continue through May of 2022. 
 
Additionally, the Board is being asked to reaffirm and ratify the terms of its other appointees to the TCC 
board. Ms. Cynthia Leon’s term ends in June 2018 and with her acceptance, we are recommending that her 
appointment be renewed for an additional 4-year term, to end in June 2022.  A request to ratify the 
appointment of Mr. David Danenfelzer was made by TCC, as well. Since Mr. Danenfelzer is assuming the 
remaining term of Mr. Jerry Romero, his term continues until June 2020.   
 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that the Board approve: 
 

1. The appointment of Mr. Roy Nash to the Texas Community Capital Board of Directors to begin in May 
2018 and end in May of 2022; 

2. The renewal of Ms. Cynthia Leon’s appointment for a new 4-year term to being June 2018 and end in 
June of 2022; and 

3. To ratify the term of Mr. David Danenfelzer, who is assuming the remaining term of Mr. Romero. His 
appointment will end in June of 2020.  



Tab 7  



Critical Repair Funding Guidelines 
Housing and Economic Assistance to 
Rebuild Texas (HEART) Program 
 

 
 
Program Overview 
The Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation (TSAHC) has partnered with Enterprise 
Community Partners and the Rebuild Texas Fund to create the Housing and Economic Assistance 
to Rebuild Texas (HEART) Program, a program that awards grants of up to $50,000 to nonprofits 
providing critical home repairs and other housing assistance to families displaced or otherwise 
affected by Hurricane Harvey.  
 
In addition to grant funding, the program also provides direct technical assistance to grantees to 
help them build capacity and scale their programs to assist more Texas families. 
 
Funding for Critical Home Repairs 
A total of $350,000 in initial funding is available for critical home repairs under the HEART 
Program. This includes an initial $250,000 grant from the Rebuild Texas Fund as well as a 
$100,000 commitment from TSAHC’s Board of Directors.  
 
The Rebuild Texas Fund has also committed additional funding as matching funds, which may 
become available once the initial funds are expended. TSAHC and Enterprise Community 
Partners will continue to seek additional funds to increase the funding available under the 
program. 

Eligibility Requirements 
To qualify for critical repair grant funding, applicants must meet the following requirements: 
 

1. Organization Type: Applicant must be a nonprofit organization with a 501(c)(3) 
designation from the Internal Revenue Service; a government entity serving one or 
more rural counties, cities and/or communities1; a church; or a religious organization. 

2. Experience Requirements: Applicant must have a successful track record of providing 
housing-related services for at least two years. Applicants without a 501(c)(3) status 
must specifically be able to document prior experience with home repair programs. 

3. Financial Requirements: Applicant must be able to provide annual financial audits for its 
two most recent fiscal years (TSAHC will accept financial reviews in lieu of audits from 
organizations with an annual operating budget of $750,000 or less) and must be 
prepared to submit its audits, as well as other financial documents, when requested. 

4. Household Requirements: To ensure the HEART program reaches those who are most 
in need, each applicant must use critical repair funds only for critical home repairs2 of 

                                                      
1 TSAHC defines “rural” as a county that is outside a metropolitan statistical area (MSA), or a city or 
community that is: 1) outside the boundaries of an MSA; or 2) within the boundaries of an MSA, if it has a 
population of 25,000 or less and does not share a boundary with an urban area (population larger than 
25,000 within an MSA). 

 



single-family homes3 to households at or below 80% of the area median family income 
(low income)4. Homes receiving repairs must be owner-occupied. 

5. Geographic Requirements: Applicant must provide critical repairs to hurricane-
damaged homes located in counties eligible for individual assistance as part of the 
Federal Emergency Management Agency’s federal disaster declaration. A map of the 
counties included in the federal disaster declaration is included as an attachment to 
these guidelines. The number of grants and funding available to Harris, Montgomery 
and/or Waller County are limited to no more than half the total amount of critical repair 
grants and funding available.  
 

Administration  
1. Applications will be accepted on a rolling basis as long as funding is available. 
2. Interested applicants must submit an introductory pre-proposal describing their 

proposed program and technical assistance needs.  
3. After reviewing each pre-proposal for program eligibility, TSAHC, Enterprise Community 

Partners and the Rebuild Texas Fund will determine if the applicant is a good fit for the 
program and if so, direct the applicant to submit a full proposal. 

4. The maximum grant per applicant is $50,000, and the maximum amount that can be 
used to assist an individual household is $10,000. 

5. Grantees will receive funding as a lump sum award. In certain circumstances, TSAHC 
may disperse critical repair funds in one or more installment(s). 

6. Grantees must spend 100% of their award and complete all activities proposed in their 
application within one year of signing their grant agreement. 

7. Grantees will be required to provide income certifications for all households assisted 
with critical repairs. 

8. Grantees will be required to provide evidence that the housing receiving critical repairs 
was damaged by Hurricane Harvey. Evidence may include proof of application to the 
Federal Emergency Management Agency, Insurance Claim Statements, or property 
assessment form completed by another entity.  Grantees must also provide 
documentation demonstrating that the repairs were not funded through federal funds, 
an insurance claim, or another funding source. 

9. Funding for additional disaster-related housing services will be made available by 
Enterprise Community Partners as part of this partnership. While applicants with a 
501(c)(3) designation may apply for both funding types, the total available to each 
organization is capped at $50,000. Applicants do not need to submit a separate 
application for each funding type. 

 
 
                                                                                                                                                              
2 TSAHC defines critical repairs as repairs to a failed system, including electrical, roofing 
repairs/replacements, structural damage, plumbing, mechanical systems, and heating and air conditioning. 
 Critical repairs must be vital to the health and safety of the occupants and meet state and local building 
codes. 
3 TSAHC defines “single family home” as a residential property with an attached or detached dwelling that 
consists of (i) a single unit on an individual lot, or (ii) a single unit in a condo project, Planned Unit 
Development, or duplex, triplex or fourplex, or (iii) not more than four connected units, with each unit 
intended as housing for one family. Dwellings that are not titled as real estate, such as RVs and houseboats, 
are not eligible. 
4 TSAHC uses the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development’s Section 8 income limits to 
determine income eligibility for the HEART program.  To review the current income limits, visit: 
www.huduser.org/portal/datasets/il.html 

http://www.huduser.org/portal/datasets/il.html


 
 
Grant Agreement 
Grantees will be required to execute a grant agreement that outlines:  

• a description of how the grant will be used,  
• eligible expenditures5,  
• reporting requirements, and 
• TSAHC’s right to inspect properties or service records and to review financial documents.  

 
Failure to adhere to the terms of the grant agreement may result in the delay or cancelation of 
grants, termination of the agreement, or request for repayment of all or part of the grants 
disbursed. 
 
Questions 
Questions should be submitted in writing to Michael Wilt by email at mwilt@tsahc.org. 
Applicants are highly encouraged to review the HEART Program Question and Answer section of 
TSAHC’s website at www.tsahc.org for pertinent application information.  
 
 

                                                      
5 Grantees must use 100% of their grant for direct costs for critical home repairs. These costs may include, 
but are not limited to, contractor fees, materials, salaries for staff performing critical repair work, and 
building permits and inspection fees for homes to be repaired. The grant agreement will include a full list of 
expenses eligible for a grant. 

mailto:mwilt@tsahc.org
http://www.tsahc.org/


Newton

Cass

Rusk Panola

Harrison
Gregg

Marion

Angelina
San Augustine

Sabine

Galveston
Chambers

Jefferson
Orange

San
Jacinto

Liberty

Hardin
Tyler

JasperTrinity

Cherokee

Polk

Nacogdoches

Lamar Red
River

Titus
Morris

Bowie

Anderson

Smith
UpshurWood

Grimes
Walker

HoustonLeon

Freestone

Matagorda

BrazoriaWharton

Fort
Bend

Navarro
Henderson

Van
ZandtKaufman
RainsRockwall

Washington
Austin

Waller Harris
Montgomery

Grayson
Collin

Fannin

Hunt Hopkins
Delta

Bosque
McLennan

Hill

Falls

Hood

Parker

Johnson
Tarrant

Ellis

Dallas

Gonzales

Goliad

DeWitt
Victoria

Lavaca

Jackson

Colorado
Caldwell

Bastrop
Fayette

BurlesonWilliamson
Bell

Milam
Robertson

San Patricio

Refugio
Aransas

Calhoun

Jack

Clay
Montague

Wise

Cooke
Denton

CameronHidalgo
Willacy

Kenedy
Brooks

Kleberg

Eastland

Comanche

Palo
Pinto

Erath

Live
Oak Bee

Atascosa Karnes

Wilson
Bexar

Guadalupe
Comal

Kendall Hays

Blanco Travis

Burnet
Llano

San
Saba

Duval

McMullen

Jim Wells
Nueces

Brown

Lampasas

Hamilton
Coryell

Jones

Coleman

Callahan

Shackelford

Kimble

MasonMenard

McCulloch
Concho

BanderaReal
Kerr Gillespie

La
Salle

Zavala Frio

Uvalde Medina

Starr

Zapata Jim
Hogg

Webb

Nolan

Fisher

Runnels

Taylor

Tom
Green

Sterling Coke

Mitchell
Howard

Borden
Scurry

Lynn Garza Kent
Dickens

Stonewall

King Knox

Throckmorton

Baylor
Young

Archer
Wichita

Maverick

Dimmit

Kinney

Val Verde
Edwards

Crockett

Reagan Irion

Sutton

Schleicher

Upton
Crane

GlasscockEctor
Midland

Andrews Martin

Gaines Dawson

Brewster
Terrell

Pecos

Ward

Winkler

Presidio

Jeff Davis

Hudspeth
Culberson

Reeves

Loving

Cottle

Collingsworth
Wheeler

Childress
Hardeman

Wilbarger
Foard

Hemphill
Lipscomb

Moore

Sherman

Carson

Hutchinson

Hansford
Roberts

Ochiltree

Randall

Potter

Armstrong
Briscoe

Donley

Gray

Hall

Crosby

Hale Floyd
MotleySwisher

Lubbock
Bailey Lamb

Parmer Castro

Yoakum
Cochran Terry

Hockley

Deaf
Smith

Oldham

Hartley

Dallam

El Paso

AR

LA

MO

NM

OK

FEMA-4332-DR, Texas Disaster Declaration as of 10/11/2017

Data Layer/Map Description:
The types of assistance that have 
been designated for selected 
areas in the State of Texas.
All designated areas in the State 
of Texas are eligible to apply 
for assistance under the Hazard 
Mitigation Grant Program.

0 40 80 120 160
Miles

Data Sources: 
FEMA, ESRI; 
Initial Declaration: 08/25/2017
Disaster Federal Registry Notice:
Amendment #10 - 10/11/2017 
Datum: North American 1983
Projection: Lambert Conformal Conic

²

Designated Counties
No Designation
Public Assistance
Individual Assistance and
Public Assistance
Public Assistance (Category
B)
Individual Assistance and
Public Assistance (Categories
A and B)
Individual Assistance and
Public Assistance (Categories
A - G)

UT ILCO KYKS MO
AZ OK TN

TX

NM AL
MS

AR

LA

MapID ead96c4eeef1011171451hqprod



Tab 8  



MINUTES AND CERTIFICATION 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
 § 
TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE § 
HOUSING CORPORATION § 

 
I, the undersigned officer of the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation (the 

“Corporation”), do hereby certify as follows: 

1. The Board of Directors of the Corporation (the “Board”) convened on the 19th 
day of April, 2018, at the designated meeting place in Austin, Texas, and the roll was called of 
the duly constituted members of said Board and officers, to wit: 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Name Office 
  
Robert Elliott Jones Chairperson 
William H. Dietz Vice Chairperson 
Jerry Romero Director 
Gerry Evenwel Director 
Vacant Director 
  

OFFICERS 
Name Office 
  
David Long President  (non-Board member) 
Janie Taylor Executive Vice President (non-Board member) 
Melinda Smith Chief Financial Officer (non-Board member) 
Laura Ross Secretary  (non-Board member) 
Cynthia Gonzales Assistant Secretary (non-Board member) 
  

and all of said members of the Board of Directors were present except 
_____________________, thus constituting a quorum.  Whereupon, among other business, the 
following was transacted, to-wit:  a written resolution (the “Resolution”) bearing the following 
caption: 

RESOLUTION NO. 18-__ 
 

TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION 

“A Resolution to Restate, Ratify, and Affirm the Officers of the 
Corporation, Appoint the person to Fill the Position of Corporate 
Secretary, and Designate and Restate the Signature and Approval 
Authority of Officers of the Corporation.” 



2 

 

was duly introduced for the consideration of the Board and read in full.  It was then duly moved 
and seconded that the Resolution be adopted; and, after due discussion, the motion carrying with 
it the adoption of the Resolution, prevailed and passed by the following vote: 

    AYES  _____ NOES _____ ABSTENTIONS 

   

2. That a true, full and correct copy of the aforesaid Resolution [as modified to 
reflect discussion by said Board] adopted at the meeting described in the above and foregoing 
paragraph is attached to and follows this certificate; that said Resolution has been duly recorded 
in said Board’s minutes of said meeting; that the above and foregoing paragraph is a true, full 
and correct excerpt from said Board’s minutes of said meeting pertaining to the adoption of said 
Resolution; that the persons named in the above and foregoing paragraph are the duly chosen, 
qualified officers of the Corporation and members of said Board as indicated therein; that each of 
the officers and members of said Board was duly and sufficiently notified officially and 
personally, in advance, of the time, place and purpose of the aforesaid meeting, and that said 
Resolution would be introduced and considered for adoption at said meeting, and each of said 
officers and members of said Board consented, in advance, to the holding of said meeting for 
such purpose. 

SIGNED this 19th day of April, 2018. 

 
 
 
  
Secretary, Texas State Affordable Housing 
Corporation



 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 18-__ 

BOARD RESOLUTION 
OF 

TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION 
 

RESOLUTION TO RESTATE, RATIFY, AND AFFIRM THE OFFICERS OF THE 
CORPORATION, APPOINT A PERSON TO FILL THE POSITION OF EXECUTIVE 
VICE PRESIDENT, AND TO DESIGNATE AND RESTATE THE SIGNATURE AND 

APPROVAL AUTHORITY FOR OFFICERS OF THE CORPORATION 
 

WHEREAS, Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation (the “Corporation”) has been 
duly created and organized pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions of the Texas Non-
Profit Corporation Act, Article 1396-1.01 et. seq., now codified as the Texas Business 
Organizations Code, Chapter 22 as amended, and under the authority of Texas Government 
Code, Title 10, Chapter 2306, Subchapter Y, as amended; and 

WHEREAS, Laura Ross has accepted a new position at the Corporation and will no 
longer serve as Secretary of the Corporation effective April 19, 2018; and  

 
WHEREAS, upon the recommendation of Mr. David Long, President of the 

Corporation, the Corporation has selected Ms. Lacy Brown to assume the position of Secretary 
of the Corporation, effective April 19, 2018; and 

 
WHEREAS, effective implementation and execution of the Corporation’s programs, 

operations and various task forces require that persons employed by the Corporation as Officers 
be empowered to approve and execute documents pursuant to the authority given such Officers 
as provided in the relevant resolutions passed or to be passed by the Board with respect to the 
Corporation’s programs, operations and various task forces; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION THAT: 

RESOLVED, that upon Laura Ross accepting a new position at the Corporation, the 
Board hereby ratifies, affirms, appoints, and restates, the following persons as the officers of the 
Corporation: 

 President        David Long 
 Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer   Melinda Smith 
 Executive Vice President     Janie Taylor 
 Secretary       Lacy Brown 
 Assistant Secretary      Cynthia Gonzales 
 

RESOLVED, that the Board hereby authorizes David Long, as President of the 
Corporation, to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Corporation, any and all documents or 
instruments necessary to carry out his functions as President, including without limitation, any 
and all documents and instruments relating to the Corporation’s programs (including bond 
administration), operations and task forces. 



 

RESOLVED, that he Board hereby authorizes Janie Taylor, as Executive Vice President 
of the Corporation, to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Corporation, any and all documents 
or instruments necessary to carry out her functions as Executive Vice President. 

RESOLVED, that the Board hereby authorizes Melinda Smith, as Chief Financial 
Officer and Treasurer of the Corporation, to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Corporation, 
any and all documents or instruments necessary to carry out her functions as Chief Financial 
Officer and Treasurer. 

RESOLVED, that effective April 19, 2018, the Board hereby authorizes Lacy Brown, as 
Secretary of the Corporation, and Cynthia Gonzales as Assistant Secretary of the Corporation, to 
execute and deliver, on behalf of the Corporation, any and all documents or instruments 
necessary to carry out their respective functions as Secretary and Assistant Secretary of the 
Corporation.  

Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the date 
of its adoption. 

ALL MATTERS ABOVE ARE APPROVED AND EFFECTIVE this 19th day of April, 
2018. 

 

______________________________________ 
      Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Laura Ross 
Secretary of the Corporation 
 



Tab 9  
Closed Executive Session – 

Discuss real estate matters related to the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of 
real property located at 112 Sanford Drive, Leander Texas (Real Estate Matters 

Section 551.072 Texas Government Code) 

 



Tab 10 
Closed Executive Session – 

Discuss legal issues related to mortgage transaction matters with Mortgage 
Financial Services Company. (Private Consultation with Legal Counsel – Section 

551.071 Texas Government Code) 


	Cover
	Agenda 
	Executive Vice President's Report
	Tab A 
	Tab B 
	Tab C 
	Tab D 

	Tab 1 
	Tab 2 
	Tab 3 
	Tab 4 
	Tab 5 
	Tab 6 
	Tab 7 
	Tab 8 
	Tab 9
	Tab 10



